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VISION 

Center of excellence for higher 

learning in Sri Lanka. 

 

 

 

MISSION 

To facilitate learning, research and 

dissemination of knowledge to produce 

competent graduate through conducive 

environment with industry-community 

collaboration to serve socio-economic and 

cultural needs of the country 
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OUR GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
Eastern University, Sri Lanka (EUSL) has identified the following goals with respective 

objectives.  

  

• Periodically revise curricula to 
improve quality and relevance 

• Improve teaching, learning and 
assessment strategies.

• Introduce new study programmes 
based on market demand and future 
trends. 

• Enhance teaching and learning 
environment 

Produce competent and 
employable graduates 

by

• Achieve standards of excellence in 
research 

• Strengthen Research Degree 
programmes

• Enhance industrial interaction and 
commercialization of research and 
innovation. 

Achieve standards of 
excellence in research, 

innovation and 
postgraduate training by

• Enhance strength and quality of staff

• Secure, improve and develop 
infrastructure facilities

• Enhance Governance and 
Management

• Maintain an effective Quality 
Assurance System

Enhance Institutional 
Capacity and 

Governance by

• Widen participation and equitable 
access to higher education 

• Enhance community services and 
outreach programmes

• Provide advisory and consultancy 
services

• Promote entrepreneurship and 
partnership

Enhance Community 
Engagement, 

Consultancy and 
Outreach by
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A MESSAGE FROM THE VICE-CHANCELLOR 
 

 

PROFESSOR F C RAGEL  

VICE-CHANCELLOR  

 

It is with great pleasure that I present the 

Annual Report of Eastern University, Sri 

Lanka (EUSL) for the year 2020. The 

University comprises with six faculties, a 

Campus at Trincomalee and an Institute for 

aesthetic studies (SVIAS). EUSL is 

continuously striving to provide excellent 

conducive learning environment for students, 

and has been adopting a policy of providing 

residential facilities for all undergraduate 

students. 

 

The university has transformed many 

teaching activities through online platform 

during the year of 2020 due to COVID 

pandemic, and has strived to ensure a 

conducive environment that contributed 

towards learning, research, dissemination of 

knowledge and community outreach. Notable 

significance is that research articles with 

EUSL affiliation received the Presidential 

Awards. Moreover, it is noteworthy that 

seventy five research articles with EUSL 

affiliation have been published in the year 

2020 in journals indexed by Web of Science 

(Clarivate Analytics).  

 

In addition to the academic activities, the 

students had limited engagement in co - and 

extra-curricular activities such as sports, 

aesthetic, cultural and religious activities. 

EUSL has a rich blend of multi-ethnic, multi-

religious student community which provides a 

unique opportunity to experiment cultivation 

of harmony. 

 

I take this opportunity to express my gratitude 

to the Council, the Senate, the academic 

community, and the administrative and 

nonacademic staff of EUSL for making the 

year 2020 productive. 

 

Professor F. C. Ragel 

Vice Chancellor 

Eastern University, Sri Lanka 
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ABOUT US 
 

In 2020 the Eastern University, Sri Lanka continued to deliver its academic activities 

through its eight faculties and 37 departments of study. 
 

The Eastern University, Sri Lanka (EUSL), was established on the 01st of October 1986 

by a University Order dated 26th September 1986 issued under Section 2 of the 

Universities Act No: 16 of 1978. The University was preceded by the Batticaloa University 

College established on 01st August 1981 which was started in the buildings of the 

Vantharumoolai Madya Maha Vidyalayam. The Batticaloa University College began with 

two faculties: The Faculty of Science and the Faculty of Agriculture and both these 

faculties were affiliated to the University of Peradeniya. Two new faculties viz. the Faculty 

of Commerce and Management and the Faculty of Cultural Studies were established in 

1988. The Faculty of Cultural Studies was then expanded and renamed the Faculty of Arts 

and Culture in 1991. The Faculty of Health-Care Sciences was established by Gazette 

notification on 23rd November, 2004. The Faculty of Technology is the youngest faculty in 

EUSL which was established by Gazette notification on 18th January, 2018. 
 

Trincomalee Campus of the Eastern University was originally established as 

Trincomalee Affiliated University College in April 1993 at Trincomalee subsequently it was 

affiliated to the Eastern University, Sri Lanka. When the University College system was 

abolished, Trincomalee Affiliated University College was upgraded as Trincomalee 

Campus of the Eastern University, Sri Lanka which was established with effect from 15th 

June 2001 by Gazette notification dated 6th June 2001 with the two Faculties, namely 

Faculty of Communication and Business Studies and Faculty of Applied Science. 

Subsequently a unit of Siddha Medicine was also established.  

 

Swamy Vipulananda Institute of Aesthetic Studies (SVIAS) was affiliated to Eastern 

University, Sri Lanka with effect from the 14th of March 2005 through the gazette of the 

Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka – Extra ordinary dated Jun 3rd 2005. Before 

affiliation it was called Swamy Vipulananda College of Music and Dance, established on 

29th May 1982 by the Ministry of Regional Affairs and Hindu Culture and then under the 

Ministry of Cultural Affairs.  

 

Eastern University, Sri Lanka has a strong focus on producing competent graduates to 

serve socio-economic and cultural needs of the country. It is also striving to enhance its 

research capacities with specific emplanes in promoting multidisciplinary research to 

serve the needs of the region and country. It also realizes its role to provide peace and 

harmony to the region.  
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THE COUNCIL 
The Council of the 

University is constituted 

in terms of Section 44 of 

the Universities Act No. 

16 of 1978 as amended 

by Section 24 of the 

Universities 

(Amendment) Act. No. 

07 of 1985. The 

University Council is the 

governing authority of 

the University which 

consists of the Vice -

Chancellor (as the ex-

officio Chairperson), 

Registrar is the 

Secretary of the 

Council.

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

Prof. F. C. Ragel - Vice Chancellor -Chairman  

Prof. V. Kanagasingam  - Rector/ Trincomalee Campus (TC) 

Dr. P. Sivarajah  - Dean/ Agriculture (till February, 2020) 

Dr. M. Pagthinathan - Dean/ Agriculture (from March, 2020) 

Dr. J. Kennedy - Dean/ Arts and Culture  
Mrs. V. R. Ragel  - Dean/ Commerce and Management (till September, 2020) 

Dr. S. Jeyarajah - Dean/ Commerce and Management (from October, 2020) 

Dr. A. N. Arulpragasam  - Dean/ Health-care Sciences 

Dr. .P. Peratheepan - Dean/ Science 

Dr. K. Premakumar  - Acting Dean/ Faculty of Technology 
Mrs. K. Santhrakumar  - Dean/ Communication and Business Studies, TC 
Mr. S. Thadchanamoorthy  - Dean/ Applied Science, TC 
 

APPOINTED MEMBERS BY THE UNIVERSITY GRAND COMMISSION 

Prof. M. Selvarajah 
Prof. R. Sulaima Lebbe 
Dr. H. R. Thambawita 
Dr. S. M Hussain 
Mr. S. Shanmugam 
Dr. G. Sukunan 
Eng. S. Mohanarajah 
Eng. S. Thilagarajah 
Mr. T. Sivanathan 
Mr. P. Premanath 
Mr. A. L. Joufer Sadique 
Mr. N. Sivalingam 
Ms. S. J. M. S. Samarakoon 
 

ELECTED MEMBERS BY THE SENATE 
Dr. M. Pagthinathan (till February, 2020) 
Prof. S. Thirukkanesh (till February, 2020) 
Dr. K. T. Sundaresan (from July, 2020) 
Dr. K. Rajendram (from July, 2020) 

 

SECRETARY TO THE COUNCIL 
Mr. A. Pahirathan  - Registrar, EUSL 

 

THE SENATE  

The University Senate 

is constituted in terms of 

Section 46 (2) of the 

Universities Act No. 16 

of 1978, as amended by 

the Universities 

(Amendment) Act No. 7 

of 1985. The Senate is 

the academic 

authoritative body. 

Registrar is the 

Secretary of the Senate.

MEMBERS OF THE SENATE 
Prof. F. C. Ragel - Vice Chancellor -Chairman  
Prof. V. Kanagasingam  - Rector/ Trincomalee Campus (TC) 
Prof. A. Murugathas - Acting Director/ SVIAS 

Dr. P. Sivarajah  - Dean/ Agriculture (till February, 2020) 

Dr. M. Pagthinathan - Dean/ Agriculture (from March, 2020) 

Dr. J. Kennedy - Dean/ Arts and Culture 

Mrs. V. R. Ragel  - Dean/ Commerce and Management (till September, 2020) 
Dr. S. Jeyarajah - Dean/ Commerce and Management (from October, 2020) 

Dr. A. N. Arulpragasam  - Dean/ Health-care Sciences 
Prof. .P. Peratheepan - Dean/ Science 

Dr. K. Premakumar  - Acting Dean/ Faculty of Technology 

Mrs. K. Santhrakumar  - Dean/ Communication and Business Studies, TC 
Mr. S. Thadchanamoorthy  - Dean/ Applied Science, TC 

Snr. Prof. (Mrs.) T. Mahendran  - Senior Professor in Agricultural Chemistry 

Snr. Prof. P. Vinobaba  - Senior Professor in Zoology  
Snr. Prof. T. Jayasingam - Senior Professor in Botany (till August, 2020) 
Prof. V. Gunaretnam  - Professor in Political Science 

Prof. T. Krishnamohan - Professor in Political Science (from July, 2020) 

Prof. S. Thirukkanesh  - Professor in Mathematics 
Prof. A. G. Johnpilllai  - Professor in Mathematics 

Prof. (Mrs.) T.H. Seran  - Professor in Crop Science 

Prof. A. Murugathas  - Professor in Tamil 

Prof. S. Sutharsan  - Professor in Crop Science 

Prof. (Mrs.) P. Premanandarajah - Professor in Agricultural Chemistry (from July, 2020)   
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Mr. W. J. Jeyaraj  - Librarian 

Dr. (Mrs.) N. R. Fernando  - Head/ Agricultural 
Biology 

Dr. M. Pagthinathan  - Head/ Animal Science (till 
February, 2020) 

Dr. M. M. Mahusoon - Head/ Animal Science (from 
March, 2020) 

Dr. T. Geretharan - Acting Head/ Crop Science  

Snr. Prof. (Mrs.) T. Mahendran  - Head/ Agricultural 
Chemistry 

Prof. (Mrs.) T. H. Seran - Acting Head/ Agricultural 
Economics  

Mrs. T. Geretharan - Acting Head/ Agricultural 
Economics 

Mr. M. Rajendran - Head/ Agricultural 
Engineering 

Mr. R. Kiruparajah  - Head/ Geography 

Mr. S. Chandrakumar  - Head/ Fine Arts (till 
September, 2020) 

Mr. K. Ravichandran - Acting Head/ Fine Arts 
(from October, 2020) 

Dr. M.H.M. Jaleel - Head/ Arabic  

Mr. K. Mathiseelan - Acting Head/ Comparative 
Religion & Social Harmony  

Dr. S. Santhirasegaram - Head/ Languages  

Dr. G. Thillainathan  - Head/ Social Sciences 

Mr. S. Jeganathan - Head/ Philosophy and 
Value Studies 

Mr. A. L. M. Mujahid - Head/ Islamic Studies  

Dr. (Mrs.) S. Kesavan  - Head/ Hindu Civilization 

Dr. C. Arulmoly  - Head/ Education and 
Childcare 

Mr. S. K. Shivahaneshan  - Head/ History 

Dr. S. Umashankar - Acting Head/ English 
Language Teaching (from 
June, 2020) 

Dr. S. Jeyarajah  - Head/ Economics (till 
October, 2020) 

Mrs. J. Suresh - Acting Head/ Economics 
(from, November, 2020) 

Mr. T. Paranthaman  - Head/ Commerce 

Dr. A. Anton Arulrajah  - Head/ Management 

Dr. P. Rodney Fernando - Head/ Physics 

Dr. M. Sithambaresan  - Head/ Chemistry (till 
September, 2020) 

Dr. M. Koneswaran - Head/ Chemistry (from 
October, 2020) 

Mr. P. Paramadevan - Acting Head/ Mathematics 

Dr. T. Mathiventhan  - Head/ Botany 

Dr. (Mrs.). C. G. Devadasan - Head/ Zoology  

Dr. V. J. Naveenraj  - Head/ Languages and 
Communication Studies, TC 

Mrs. S. Priyadharsan  - Head/ Business and 
Management Studies, TC 
(till February, 2020)  

 

Mr. T. Baskar - Head/ Business and  
Management Studies, TC 
(From March, 2020) 

Mr. M. Ramanan  - Head/ Computer Science, 
TC 

Mr. S. Loheeswaran - Head/ Physical Science, TC 

Dr. M. Thirukumar  - Head/ Clinical Sciences 

Mrs. N. Sathiesswaran  - Head/ Pathophysiology (till 
March, 2020) 

Dr. V. R. Francis - Head/ Pathophysiology 
(from  

 June, 2020)  

Dr. M. Roshini  - Head/ Medical Education 
and Research 

Dr. (Mrs.) R. Sanjeev  - Head/ Human Biology 

Dr. K. Arulanandem  - Head/ Primary Health Care 

Dr. S. Sujendran  - Head/ Supplementary 
Health Sciences 

Mr. M. Sugirtharan - Acting Head/ Bio-system 
Technology (till July, 2020) 

Mrs. B. Karunarathna - Acting Head/ Bio-system 
Technology (from August, 
2020) 

Mr. S. Sotheeswaran - Acting Head/ 
Multidisciplinary Studies 

Dr. S. Sivaretnam - Head/ Visual Technological 
Arts, SVIAS (from 
November, 2020) 

Dr. T. Pratheepan -  Head/ Music, SVIAS (from 
November, 2020) 

Dr. G. Jeyaranjinee - Head/ Dance, Drama & 
Theatre, SVIAS (from 
November, 2020) 

Dr. (Mrs.) P. Premanandarajah  - Rep/ Faculty of Agriculture 

Dr. M. M. Mahusoon - Rep/ Faculty of Agriculture 

Dr. T. Prabaharan  - Rep/ Faculty of Commerce 
and Management  

Dr. S. Balendran  - Rep/ Faculty of Commerce 
and Management 

Dr. (Mrs.) C. Mahendranathan  - Rep/ Faculty of Science (till 
March, 2020) 

Dr. P. Elango  - Rep/ Faculty of Science  

Dr. K. Rajendram - Rep/ Faculty of Arts and 
Culture 

Dr. K. T. Sundaresan  - Rep/ Faculty of Health-care 
Sciences  

Dr. M. Umakanth  - Rep/ Faculty of Health-care 
Sciences 

Dr. S. Ushakanthan - Acting Head/ Unit of Siddha 
Medicine, TC (on invitation, 
till February, 2020)  

Dr. N. Varnakulendran - Acting Head/ Unit of Siddha 
Medicine, TC (on invitation, 
from March, 2020) 

 

SECRETARY TO THE SENATE 
Mr. A. Pahirathan  - Registrar, EUSL  

12TH 

 university in Sri Lanka 

WEBOMETRICS RANKED 

5280 

 university in the world 
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FACULTIES AND STUDY PROGRAMMES AT EUSL 

EUSL has six Faculties in Main Centre and two Faculties in Trincomalee Campus namely Agriculture, Arts 

and Culture, Commerce and Management, Health-care Sciences, Science, Technology, Applied Science 

and Communication and Business Studies. EUSL offers Bachelor, Master and Research Degrees, Diploma 

and Certificate programs. Academic departments, Units and degree programs offered by the faculties are 

shown in the tables given below. 

MAIN CENTRE, EUSL 
 
AGRICULTURE 

BScHons in Agriculture;  
MSc in Agriculture. 

Research degrees 

MPhil 
 

ARTS AND CULTURE 

BA (General); 
BA (Special) in Comparative Religion; 
BA (Special) in Drama and Theatre; 
BA (Special) in Economics; 
BA (Special) in Fine Arts; 
BA (Special) in Geography; 
BA (Special) in Hindu Civilization; 
BA (Special) in History; 
BA (Special) in Philosophy; 
BA (Special) in Political Science; 
BA (Special) in Sociology; 
BA (Special) in Tamil; 
BA (Special) in Translation Studies; 
Bachelor of Education; 
Master of Arts 
 

Research degrees 
MPhil and PhD 
 

COMMERCE AND MANAGEMENT 

BComHons; 
BComHons in Accounting and Finance; 
BComHons in Enterprise Development;  
BComHons in Business Economics; 
BBAHons; 
BBAHons in Human Resource Management; 
BBAHons in Marketing Management; 
Postgraduate Diploma in Management (PGDM);  
Master of Business Administration; 
Master of Development Economics. 

Research degrees 
MPhil

HEALTH-CARE SCIENCES 

Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery (MBBS); 
BSc in Nursing 
 

SCIENCE 

BSc (General); 
BScHons in Botany;  
BScHons in Chemistry;  
BScHons in Computer Science; 
BScHons in Mathematics; 
BScHons in Physics; 
BScHons in Zoology; 
MSc in Science Education; 
MSc in Environmental Science. 
 

Research degrees 
MPhil and PhD 
 

TECHNOLOGY 

Bachelor of Bio System Technology (BBST) in Agricultural 
Technology and Entrepreneurship 
 

TRINCOMALEE CAMPUS, EUSL 
 
COMMUNICATION AND BUSINESS STUDIES 

BSc in Management; 
BScHons in Management; 
BScHons in Marketing Management; 
BScHons in Human Resource Management; 
BScHons in Accounting and Finance; 
BScHons in Information Management; 
BA (Special) in Languages; 
BA in Languages; 
BA in Communication Studies; 
 

APPLIED SCIENCES 

Bachelor of Computer Science (BCS); 
BSc in Applied Physics and Electronics 
Bachelor of Siddha Medicine and Surgery (BSMS)

 

CENTER FOR EXTERNAL DEGREE AND EXTENSION COURSES (CEDEC)  

The Eastern University, Sri Lanka has commenced offering External Degree Programmes in 1991. Initially 

only the Faculty of Agriculture, Science and Commerce and Management have commenced offering External 

Degree Progammes (EDPs). The Faculty of Arts and Culture and Health-care Sciences have commenced 

EDPs in 2004. The Trincomalee Campus of the EUSL has also commenced offering the EDPs in the year 

2006. The External Degree Programmes provide opportunity for more students to get university education. 

These degree programmes are offered through CEDEC; which are Bachelor of Arts, Bachelor of Business 

Administration, Bachelor of Science in Agriculture, Bachelor of Science, Bachelor of Science in Nursing and 

Bachelor of Business Management in Main Centre, EUSL; Bachelor of Science in Management and Bachelor 

of Arts in Communication in Trincomalee Campus, EUSL   
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DIPLOMA PROGRAMMES 

Faculty of Agriculture offered Diploma in Sustainable Agriculture. Duration of the programme is two years 

and each credit will consist 15 hours of theory or 30 hours of practical. Medium of Instruction is Tamil. Faculty 

of Science offered Diploma in Laboratory Technology. Duration of the programme is 18 months Medium of 

instruction is English or Tamil. 

 

CENTER FOR INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY (CICT) 

CICT was established in Eastern University in 2003. CICT conducts various courses in computer science 

and information technology to internal and external students of all the faculties of the university. In addition 

the center conducting Certificate in ICT Skills and Computer Hardware courses for school leavers and 

government officers, which is having SLQF L1 (Equivalent to NVQ L3) according to UGC Guidelines. 

 

EXTRAMURAL STUDIES UNIT 

With the increasing need of the people in the region the Extramural Studies Unit has been established in 

1998. This programmes was initiated by the University and the Senate has dedicated it to the Faculty of Arts 

and Culture. The Faculty has created this cell and successfully conducing the following courses 

 Certificate in Journalism 

 Certificate in Disaster Management 

 Certificate in Office Management 

 Certificate in Psychology and Personality Development 

 Certificate in Counseling 

 Certificate in English for Communication 

Each course is conducted for three months in 60 hours of duration by the eminent academics.  

 

NEW FACULTY AND STUDY PROGRAMS  

Eastern University, Sri Lanka is working on introducing new degree programs on disciplines of current 

interest.  

 In keeping with the policy of producing skilled graduates for the workforce, the ‘Faculty of Technology’ is 
working on developing degree programmes on Bachelor of Information and Communication 
Technology and Bachelor of Engineering Technology (Energy and Environment). 

 The Faculty of Arts & Culture has developed a study programme Bachelor of Hindu Civilization through 
a proposed new Faculty of Hindu Civilization. The faculty is also introducing a B.A. Hons. degree 
programme in Translation Studies. 

 Trincomalee Campus is in the process of developing degree programmes in Marine Sciences/ Marine 
Engineering by a proposal to establish a new faculty. The Faculty of Communication and Business 
Studies, Trincomalee Campus is developing a degree programme on Tourism and Hospitality. 
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FAILURE AND JUSTIFICATION 

 There has been a lack of focus on an institutionalized effort on Internal Quality Assurance and orienting 
the curriculum development / revisions incorporating modern trends such as Outcome Based Education 
and Student-Centered learning (SCL) as it was not in the old Corporate Plan / Action Plan. Student-
Centered learning (SCL) as it was not in the old Corporate Plan / Action Plan. Now as per the UGC 
circular 09/2019 dated 7th Oct 2019, the University has strengthened the University's Centre for Quality 
Assurance (CQA) and appointed a new Director.  

 

A comprehensive guidelines for Examination Paper Moderations and Marking have been approved at the 
322nd Senate meeting held on 20th Jan 2021 with a Template to Report (http://esn.ac.lk/cqa/download).  
 

A comprehensive "Scheme of Award for Excellence in Teaching" has been approved at 307th Council as 

recommended by the 316th meeting of the Senate held on 22nd July 2020. The Award is based on the 

following evaluations. Student feedback-25%, feedback from Alumni/immediate passed out-15%, 

Teacher portfolio-25%, Peer evaluation-20%, and Evaluation by Head-15%. 
 

 There has not been an integrated plan for research development concentrating on local needs and high 
impact research of international significant. Now a comprehensive research policy document for the 
university has been approved by the Council at its 312th meeting held on 30th Jan 2021 for implementation. 
A Research Council has been formed with eminent researchers and an innovative output-based research 
funding mechanism introduced.   
 

 University has faced more student unrests due to various issues and measures are being taken to build 
stakeholder confidence on the institutional governance.  

 

 Limitation of staff resource and physical facilities are ongoing struggles, which resulted in delay of 
calendar and our requests for the required resources have been communicated to higher authorities. 
Large proportion of consolidated funds have been spent in the year 2020 to enhance learning 
environment that directly benefits the learners. 
 

  

http://esn.ac.lk/cqa/download
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FUTURE PLAN 

Identifying the shortcomings and gaps, a new Strategic Plan 2019-2023 was developed incorporating current 

trends in higher education, and the table below summarizes with the Goals, Objectives, Strategies and 

related Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

 
 

 

Goal 1: Produce Competent and Employable Graduates 

Objectives Strategies 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 2019  

1.1 

Periodically 
revise 
curricula to 
improve 
quality and 
relevance 

1.1.1 
Incorporating current trends 
and Practices in the curricula  

KPI 1: Level of employer -
satisfaction (on competency, 
attitudes, innovation, etc. of 
employee) 
- (% rating: highly 
satisfactory/ satisfactory/ 
above average/average/ 
poor) 
 
KPI 2: Average waiting time 
for a productive employment 
(Employability) - (% 
employed within month 
period(< 6/ 6-12/ >12)) 
 
KPI 3: Number of study 
programmes securing a score 
of 2 and above in relevant 
standards (by QAAC Review) 
 
KPI 4: Level of students' 
satisfaction (on teaching) 
- (% rating: highly 
satisfactory/ satisfactory/ 
above average/average/ 
poor) 

 
- 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79/16/5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
- 
 
 
 
 
 

17/39/25/14/5 
 

1.1.2 

Adopting outcome-based 
education (OBE) and student-
centered learning (SCL) 
approach. 

1.2 

Improve 
teaching, 
learning and 
assessment 
strategies. 

1.2.1 
Adopting OBE and SCL 
approaches. 

1.2.2 

Promoting innovative 
pedagogy and ICT into 
teaching and learning 
practices.  

1.2.3 
Strengthening internal quality 
assurance mechanisms on 
curricula   

1.3 

Introduce new 
study 
programmes 
based on 
market 
demand and 
future trends. 

1.3.1 

Adopting the "Quality 
Assurance Code of Practice- 
Academic Programme 
Development" of EUSL  

KPI 5: Number of Study 
programmes with non-
traditional, demand-driven 
subject-combinations 

- 
1.3.2 

Establish new Faculties / 
Departments. 

1.3.3 
Promoting partnerships with 
global higher educational 
institutes. 

1.4 

Enhance 
teaching and 
learning 
environment  

1.4.1 
Improving library access to 
relevant and current 
information  

KPI 6: Level of satisfaction 
(of students and teaching 
staff) on facilities required for 
academic performance and 
research  
- (% rating: highly satisfactory/ 
satisfactory/above 
average/average/ poor) 

12/30/25/20/13 

1.4.2 Improving ICT facilities 

1.4.3 
Strengthening the usage of 
English as a Second 
Language 

1.4.4 
Enhancing Career Guidance 
and Personality Development 
of Students  

1.4.5 
Ensuring student-friendly 
administrative, academic and 
technical support system.   
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GOAL 2: Achieve Standards of Excellence in Research, Innovation and Postgraduate Training 

Objectives Strategies 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 2019 

2.1 

Achieve 
standards of 
excellence in 
research 

2.1.1 
Enhancing infrastructural 
and policy environment for 
research  

KPI 7: Number of annual 
publications in journals indexed by 
Web of Science 

24 

2.1.2 

Promoting interdisciplinary 
research for socio-
economic development of 
region and nation. 

KPI 8: RG score for EUSL in 
Research Gate (based on number 
of research publications in peer 
reviewed journals / conference 
proceedings) 

640 

2.1.3 

Promoting research for 
generation of new 
knowledge of global 
significance/impact 

2.1.4 
Ensuring quality of 
research 

KPI 9: Number of academics with 
Google h-index ≥4 

24 

2.2 

Strengthen 
Research 
Degree 
programmes 

2.2.1 
Establishing Faculty of 
Graduate Studies 

KPI 10: Number of post-graduate 
studies in the fields of growing 
demand (No of completed 
Masters/MPhil/PhD students) 

25 / 3 / 0 

2.2.2 
Encouraging enrolment of 
research students.  

2.2.3 
Establishing collaborations 
for research degrees 

KPI 11: Number of on-going 
research collaborations 
(local/international) 

1 / 2 

2.3 

Enhance 
industrial 
interaction and 
commercializat
ion of research 
and innovation. 

2.3.1 
Establishing industry-
university partnership.  KPI 12: Number of startups/ 

commercialization/ patents 
received by university staff and 
students per annum. 

- 

2.3.2 
Promoting 
commercialization of 
research 

 
GOAL 3: Enhance Institutional Capacity and Governance 

Objectives Strategies 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 2019 

3.1 
Enhance 
strength and 
quality of staff 

3.1.1 

Adopting human resource 
policies on staff 
recruitment, career 
progression, professional 
development, etc. 

KPI 13: Academic staff with PhD 
in relevant fields  
(Number & percentage of total 
academic staff) 

60 (30%) 

3.1.2 

Promoting a university 
culture that value quality, 
commitment, institutional 
responsibility, selfless 
service with social 
responsibility 

KPI 14: Level of Graduation  
(% of cohort graduation) 

68% 

3.2 

Secure, improve 
and develop 
infrastructure 
facilities 

3.2.1 Updating Master Plan   KPI 15: Level of availability of 
required physical infrastructure 
(hostels, common amenities, 
access facilities, etc.) 
(% of students' rating: highly 
satisfactory/ satisfactory/ above 
average/ average/ poor) 

14/26/24/18/18 

3.2.2 
Constructing infrastructure 
facilities for New Faculties / 
Departments  

3.2.3 
Improving and maintaining 
the existing infrastructure 
facilities   

3.3 
Enhance 
Governance and 
Management 

3.3.1 
Enhancing accountability 
and transparency 

KPI 16: Number of Audit Queries 
 

KPI 17: Percentage of courses in 
a study programme adopting 
student centered learning. 
 

KPI 18: Percentage of study 
programmes releasing results 
within two months from the final 
day of examination) 

- 
 
 
- 
 
 
 
- 

3.3.2 
Managing resources 
effectively and efficiently 

3.4 

Maintain an 
effective Quality 
Assurance 
System 

3.4.1 
Ensuring alignment with 
national policy on QA in HE  

3.4.2 
Enhancing internal quality 
assurance mechanisms.  
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GOAL 4: Enhance Community Engagement, Consultancy and Outreach 

Objectives Strategies 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 2019 

4.1 

Widen 
participation and 
equitable access 
to higher 
education  

4.1.1 
Developing policy framework 
and operational procedure. 

KPI 19: Percentage/number of 
study opportunities for 
distance learning  
- (% out of total qualified 
applicants) 

50% 

4.1.2 
Widening the access to 
external study programmes  

KPI  20: Completion rate of 
distance learning and 
offcampus courses - (% of 
completion out of registered) 

40% 

4.1.3 
Recognizing exceptional skills 
and facilitate required training  

4.2 

Enhance 
community 
services and 
outreach 
programmes 

4.2.1 

Developing co- and extra-
curricular activities to engage 
students and staff with the 
community 

KPI  21: Level of engagement 
in social, cultural and extra-
curricular activities (students 
& staff) - (% rating: highly 
satisfactory/ satisfactory/ 
above average/ average/ 
poor) 

13/26/25/20/18 

4.2.2 
Promoting laboratory services 
and outreach activities  

4.3 
Provide advisory 
and consultancy 
services 

4.3.1 

Promoting appropriate 
mechanisms and procedures 
to engage academia to take 
on consultancies. 

KPI 22: Number of events / 
programmes completed 
 
KPI 23: Number of 
consultancies 

 
 

35 
 

 
- 

4.3.2 

Providing opportunities to 
communities for getting 
consultancy, advisory 
services and training. 

4.4 

Promote 
entrepreneurshi
p and 
partnership 

4.4.1 

Strengthening a strong 
University Business Linkage 
(UBL) between industry-
university-community. 

KPI 24: Number of successful 
businesses/ commercialized 
indigenous and new practices 
supported by EUSL 

- 

4.4.2 
Promoting commercialization 
linking with industry  

 

The University is in the process of implementing the 

activities under the Accelerating Higher Education 

Expansion and Development (AHEAD) Project that 

would additionally contribute to the above stated 

strategy. ELTA-ELSE Faculty Development Grants 

won by Faculty of Science and Faculty of Agriculture 

(Rs. 100 Mn each), and ELTA-ELSE Department 

Development Grants won by three departments, 

namely Department of Animal Science, Department 

of Commerce and Department of Language & 

Communications Studies(15 Mn each) will enhance 

Learner Centered Teaching (LCT), and enable to 

implement Outcome Based Education (OBE) and 

blend socio-emotional skills into the curriculum, and 

also enhance English Language as a second 

language to achieve UTEL benchmarks. The above 

stated AHEAD project activities are directly related 

to strategies 1.1.2, 1.2.1, 1.2.2, 1.4.2, 1.4.3 and 

1.4.4. Consolidated funds will be utilized for entities 

do not benefit from the AHEAD programme. 

 

The Goal-2 of the Strategic Plan shows that 

research is promoted in two fronts: (1) for socio-

economic development of the region and nation; and 

(2) for generation of new knowledge of global 

significance/impact.  

 

Under the 1st research strategy, we have started a 

coordinated effort with key external public and 

private organizations, to address community and 

environmental issues in the region through Honours 

degree research projects and disseminate the 

findings through Annual Research Sessions 

conducted by individual faculty by inviting key 

stakeholders. A separate window of funding has 

been introduced through University Research Grant 

to take exceptional work to the next stage. To 

promote the 2nd research strategy, Output Based 

Research Award scheme has been introduced for 

Publications in Journals indexed by Web of Science 

and Scopus. Each award is based on impact factor 

and the number of affiliations with a ceiling of Rs. 

250,000 per academic for a publication and the 

accumulated funds for each researcher can be used 

for Research related activities (e.g. overseas visits 

for research and conferences, journal processing 
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fee, payment for research assistants, etc.).More 

funds are reserved to develop a vibrant research 

culture, and two Development Oriented Research 

(DOR) grants (Rs. 40 Mn each) under AHEAD 

project will add value for this goal. Encouraging and 

facilitating overseas collaborations (e.g. inviting 

visiting scholars) to study local issues is a future 

strategy to enhance quality research output, 

particularly in the field of social sciences and 

humanities. 

 

The University is in the process of establishing a 

Consciousness Based Education Unit 

(http://esn.ac.lk/cbe/) integrating ancient wisdom 

(meditation/yoga) with insights in modern science 

(quantum physics, unified field and neuroscience) to 

stimulate a realization of fundamentals how nature 

behaves connecting to values of spirituality, thereby 

stimulate a self-realized transformation, that would 

possibly be solutions for drug addiction, ragging, 

stress, self-centeredness, desperateness, etc.  

 

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR 2020 

 01.01.2020   - Ceremony for the Meritorious Service awards 2020 and Felicitation to the retired staff 
2020. 

 

 09.01.2020   - ey;iyah epidTg; NgUiu – 02 (Nalliah commemorative lecture – 02) was held to 

honour his service to the nation.  

 21.01.2020   - Dr. Angela Arulpragasam, Dean, FHCS ceremonially launched the Health-care Digital 
Library developed by Library, FHCS. The digital library consists of e-copy of 
dissertations, past papers, faculty publications and e books. This digital library can be 
accessed at www.dlfhcs.esn.ac.lk 

 13.02.2020   - The Library organized an online awareness session on the new features of oxford 
medicine at IT lab of Faculty of Health-Care Sciences. The session was conducted by 
Ms. Sumita Sen, Asst. Manager, Training for South Asia & South East Asia of the Oxford 
University Press for academic staff of faculty. 

 14.02.2020   - The Fitness Gym, Boxing practice room and Table Tennis Coat were opened in the 
Trincomalee Campus premises.  

 14.02.2020   - The “Campus Village” was Ceremonially opened on the premises of Trincomalee 
Campus. 

 17.02.2020   - International Mother Language Day was celebrated at the University Nallaiya Hall. It 
was organized by the Department of Linguistics, Faculty of Arts and Culture. 

 23.02.2020   - The Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the "Sri Lanka Universities Sports Association 
(SLUSA) was held at the EUSL and Dr. (Mrs.) Chandrakantha Mahendranathan has 
been selected as the new President of SLUSA at this AGM. The next "SLUG" (Sri 
Lankan Universities Games) will be held at the EUSL in 2022. As per that Mrs. Rohini 
Antony Puvanasingham, the Director of Physical Education, EUSL has been selected 
as the Secretary of the SLUSA.  
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 29.06.2020   - Opening Ceremony of New Building Complex, Faculty of Agriculture. 

 

 15.07.2020   - Third National Symposium on Agriculture 2020 has been conducted by the Faculty of 
Agriculture, Eastern University, Sri Lanka at Board Room, Eastern University, Sri Lanka. 

 

 24.07.2020   - Third National Symposium on Agriculture 2020 has been conducted by the Faculty of 
Agriculture, Eastern University, Sri Lanka at Board Room, Eastern University, Sri Lanka. 

 28.09.2020   - INCDU European union Project has launched a web site. Developing Inclusive 
Education for Students with Disabilities in Sri Lanka. 

 30.09.2020   - Annual Research Session of Faculty of Commerce and Management “Sharing Business 
Knowledge for Community Well – being” 

 

 05.11.2020   - The planting of coconut seedlings as the first task in the farm land. 

 10.12.2020   - 2nd Annual Students’ Research Session – 2020 “Enhancing Healthcare Through 
Innovation Research” 

 18.12.2020   - World Food Day was celebrated by the CENSARM with the Advance Level Students 
(2021/2022 batch) in the Batticaloa Education Zone. 
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7,326 

total students 

DETAILS OF RESOURCES AND STUDENTS: 

  

Figure 2.1: Ratio Distribution of Students and 
Academic staffs in Main Centre, EUSL 
as at 31st December 2020.  

Figure 2.2: Ration Distribution of Students and 
Academic staffs in Trincomalee 
Campus, EUSL as at 31st December 
2020. 

 
Table 1: Frequency Distribution of Students and Permanent Staffs in Main Centre and Trincomalee 

Campus, EUSL as at 31st December 2020. 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculty Course 

T
o
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l 
S
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n
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T
o
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l 
A
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d
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m
ic

 

S
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o
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th
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r 
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c
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d
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m
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Agriculture 
Bachelor Science 
in Agriculture  

262 30 32 

Arts and 
Culture 

Bachelor of Arts 3149 65 19 

Commerce 
and 
Management 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration 

345 

27 14 
Bachelor of 
Commerce  

385 

Health-care  
Sciences 

MBBS 414 
38 38 

Bachelor of Nursing  130 

Science 

Bachelor of Science 
(Biological Science) 

259 

42 39 
Bachelor of Science 
(Physical Science) 

387 

Bachelor of Science 
(Special Degree) 

40 

Technology 
BBST (Agricultural 
Technology and 
Entrepreneurship) 

289 7 9 

Library - 5 14 

Other Departments - - 201 

Total 5660 214 366 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Faculty Course 

T
o
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o
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o
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c
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d
e

m
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Applied 
Sciences 

Bachelor of 
Computer 
Science 

261 

13 5 
B.Sc. in Applied 
Physics 
Electronics 

204 

Bachelor of 
Siddha Medicine 
and Surgery 

278 10 2 

Communication 
and Business 
Studies 

B.Sc. in 
Management 

468 

23 5 
Bachelor of Arts 
(Communication 
Studies & 
Languages) 

455 

Library - 2 6 

Other Departments - - 70 

Total 1666 48 88 

 

 

  

262 
total academic staff 

454 

total staffs other than 
academics 
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STUDENT POPULATION 

The following figures 3.1 and 3.2 show the proportional distribution of the students among each faculty in 

Main Centre, EUSL and Trincomalee Campus, EUSL respectively.  

 

Figure 3.1: Distribution of Faculty wise Student’s 
population in Main Centre, EUSL 

 

 
 

Figure 3.2: Distribution of Faculty wise Student’s 
population in Trincomalee Campus, 
EUSL 

 

DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS:  

Table 2: Local Students (New Entrants to Internal Undergraduate Degree Programs) 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculty 
Programme of 

study 

Y
e
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r 
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f 
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R
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N
o
. 
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h
e
 

c
o
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Agriculture BSc in Agriculture 2018/2019 100 68 66 

Arts and 
Culture 

Bachelor of Arts 2018/2019 600 575 560 

Commerce 
and 
Management 

BCom 2018/2019 100 89 89 

BBA 2018/2019 125 119 119 

Health-care 
Sciences 

MBBS 2018/2019 80 70 70 

BSc in Nursing 2018/2019 40 36 36 

Science 

BSc (Biological 
Science) 

2018/2019 100 88 85 

BSc (Physical 
Science) 

2018/2019 150 118 110 

Technology 

BBST 
(Agricultural 
Technology and 
Entrepreneurship) 

2018/2019 90 80 78 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Faculty 
Programme of 

study 

Y
e
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c
o

u
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Applied 
Sciences 

BCS 2018/2019 100 93 91 

BSc in Applied 
Physics and 
Electronics 

2018/2019 80 55 54 

BSMS 2018/2019 75 62 61 

Communication 
and Business 
Studies 

BSc in 
Management 

2018/2019 150 145 143 

BA (Languages 
and 
Communication 
Studies) 

2018/2019 150 144 143 

 

 

Figure 4: Distribution of new entrance students among all faculties in Main Centre and Trincomalee Campus, 

EUSL. 
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Table 3: Local Students Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in Internal Undergraduate Degree Programmes 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculty Programme of study Year of study 
Year of 
Intake 

UGC Intake (Local 
Students) 

Male Female Total 

Agriculture Bachelor of Science in Agriculture 

1st Year 2018/2019 18 48 66 

2nd Year 2017/2018 9 39 48 

3rd Year 2016/2017 15 53 68 

4th Year 2015/2016 24 34 58 

4th Year  
(Degree Pending 

Students) 

2014/2015 10 4 14 

2013/2014 2 2 4 

2012/2013 4 0 4 

Arts and Culture 

Bachelor of Arts 

1st Year 2018/2019 112 463 575 

1st Year 2nd Semi 2017/2018 120 505 625 

2nd Year 2016/2017 146 549 695 

3rd Year 2015/2016 214 834 1048 

4th Year 2014/2015 15 101 116 

Bachelor of Education 

2nd Year 2016/2017 6 24 30 

3rd Year 2015/2016 5 25 30 

4th Year 2014/2015 8 22 30 

Commerce and 
Management 

Bachelor of Commerce 

1st Year 2018/2019 32 57 89 

2nd Year 2017/2018 33 59 92 

3rd Year 2016/2017 14 63 77 

4th Year 2015/2016 29 58 87 

Bachelor of Business Administration 

1st Year 2018/2019 42 77 119 

2nd Year 2017/2018 35 63 98 

3rd Year 2016/2017 20 70 90 

4th Year 2015/2016 29 49 78 

Science 

Bachelor of Science (Biological 
Science) General Degree 

1st Year 2018/2019 14 71 85 

2nd Year 1st Semi 2017/2018 15 54 69 

2nd Year 2nd Semi 2016/2017 20 56 76 

3rd Year 2015/2016 3 26 29 

Bachelor of Science (Physical 
Science) General Degree 

1st Year 2018/2019 56 54 110 

2nd Year 1st Semi 2017/2018 56 52 108 

2nd Year 2nd Semi 2016/2017 54 52 106 

3rd Year 2015/2016 34 29 63 

Bachelor of Science (Special 
Degree) 

3rd Year 2015/2016 0 7 7 

4th Year 1st semi 2014/2015 1 17 18 

4th Year 2nd semi 2013/2014 3 12 15 

Health-care 
Sciences 

Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor 
of Surgery 

1st Year 2018/2019 27 43 70 

2nd Year 2017/2018 30 50 80 

3rd Year 2016/2017 27 46 73 

3rd Year 2015/2016 34 43 77 

4th Year 2014/2015 31 20 51 

5th Year 2013/2014 25 38 63 

Bachelor of Science in Nursing 

1st Year 2018/2019 11 25 36 

1st year 2nd Semi 2017/2018 11 15 26 

2nd Year 2016/2017 7 30 37 

3rd Year 2015/2016 5 26 31 

Technology 
Bachelor of Bio System Technology 
(Agricultural Technology and 
Entrepreneurship) 

1st Year 2018/2019 16 62 78 

2nd Year 2017/2018 17 53 70 

3rd Year 1st Semi 2016/2017 19 48 67 

3rd Year2nd Semi 2015/2016 9 65 74 
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Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Faculty Programme of study Year of study 
Year of 
Intake 

UGC Intake (Local Students) 

Male Female Total 

Applied 
Science  

Bachelor of Science in 
Computer Science 

1st Year 2018/2019 71 20 91 

2nd Year 2017/2018 52 25 77 

3rd Year 1st Semi 2016/2017 46 18 64 

3rd Year 2nd Semi 2015/2016 23 6 29 

Bachelor of Science in Applied 
Physics and Electronics 

1st Year 2018/2019 33 21 54 

2nd Year 2017/2018 32 29 61 

3rd Year 1st Semi 2016/2017 29 34 63 

3rd Year 2nd Semi 2015/2016 12 14 26 

Faculty Programme of study Year of study 
Year of 
Intake 

UGC Intake (Local Students) 

Male Female Total 

Applied 
Science 

Bachelor of Siddha Medicine 
and Surgery 

1st Year 1st Semi 2018/2019 13 48 61 

1st Year 2nd Semi 2017/2018 16 44 60 

2nd Year 2016/2017 11 40 51 

3rd Year 1st Semi 2015/2016 3 14 17 

3rd Year 2nd Semi 2014/2015 8 21 29 

4th Year 2013/2014 10 30 40 

5th Year 2012/2013 3 17 20 

Communication 
and Business 

Studies 

Bachelor of Science in 
Management  

1st Year 2018/2019 28 115 143 

2nd Year 2017/2018 30 97 127 

3rd Year 1st Semi 2016/2017 31 59 90 

3rd Year 2nd Semi 2015/2016 19 50 69 

4th Year 2014/2015 11 28 39 

Bachelor of Arts (Languages 
and Communication Studies) 

1st Year 2018/2019 7 136 143 

2nd Year 2017/2018 10 125 135 

3rd Year 2016/2017 3 78 81 

3rd Year 2015/2016 5 81 86 

4th Year 2014/2015 1 9 10 

 

Table 4: Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in External Undergraduate Degree Fee Levying Programs 

Main Centre, EUSL 
Programme of 

study 
Year of 
study 

Male Female Total 

Total no. of registered students (as at 31st December 2020) 

Bachelor of Arts 

1st Year 17 14 31 

2nd Year 22 11 33 

3rd Year 26 41 67 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration 

1st Year 0 0 0 

2nd Year 1 0 1 

3rd Year 1 0 1 

4th Year 0 2 2 

Bachelor of Business 
Management 

1st Year 146 104 250 

2nd Year 125 83 208 

3rd Year 86 69 155 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 
Programme of 

study 
Year of 
study 

Male Female Total 

Total no. of registered students (as at 31st December 2020) 

Bachelor of Science 
in Management 

3rd Year 3 3 6 

Bachelor of Arts in 
Communication 

3rd Year 1 2 3 
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Table 5: Local Students New Entrants and Enrolment (Total No .of Students) in Postgraduate Degree 

Programs 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculty Programme of study 
Full Time/  
Part Time 

Male Female Total 

New Entrants (January to December 2020) 

Commerce and Management 
Master of Business Administration Full Time 22 9 31 

MPhil in Economics Full Time 1 3 4 

Total no. of registered students (as at 31st December 2020) 

Agriculture 
Master of Science in Agriculture Full Time 9 7 16 

MPhil in Food Science and Technology Full Time 0 1 1 

Arts and Culture 

Master of Education Full Time 70 48 118 

Master of Arts Full Time 21 23 44 

MPhil in Geography Full Time 1 0 1 

MPhil in Fine Arts Full Time 2 1 3 

MPhil in Drama and Theatre Full Time 2 4 6 

MPhil in Tamil Full Time 0 1 1 

PhD in Tamil  Full Time 1 0 1 

PhD in Fine Arts Full Time 1 0 1 

Commerce and Management 

Master of Development Economics Full Time 5 3 8 

Master of Business Administration Full Time 36 9 45 

MPhil in Economics Full Time 1 3 4 

Science 

Master of Science in Science Education Full Time 5 8 13 

MPhil Full Time 0 1 1 

PhD Full Time 1 2 3 
 

 

 

DETAILS OF FOREIGN STUDENTS:  

Table 6: Foreign Students (students selected under foreign category) Enrolment in 2020 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculty 
Programme 

of study 
Year of Study Country Year of Intake 

Student Enrolment (total 
no. of registered 

students) 

M F T 

Health-care 
Sciences 

MBBS 

4th Year 
Australia 

2013/2014 
0 1 1 

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 0 2 2 

4th Year 

New Zealand 
2014/2015 

0 1 1 

Australia 0 1 1 

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 0 2 2 

2nd Year Canada 2017/2018 0 1 1 
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GRADUATE OUTPUT: 

Table 7: Undergraduate Output – Internal Students 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculty Programme of study 
No. Sat 
for Final 
Exam 

Total No. 
of 

Graduated 

Arts and 
Culture 

Bachelor of Arts 
(General) 

156 153 

Bachelor of Arts 
(Special) 

81 76 

Bachelor of Education 10 10 

Agriculture 
Bachelor of Science in 
Agriculture  

70 70 

Commerce 
and 
Management 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration 

165 133 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration Honours 
in Human Resource 
Management 

16 16 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration Honours 
in Marketing 
Management 

20 20 

Bachelor of Commerce  112 87 

Bachelor of Commerce  
Honours in Accounting 
and Finance 

41 40 

Bachelor of Commerce  
Honours in Business 
Economics 

4 4 

Science 

Bachelor of Science 
(General) 

205 76 

Bachelor of Science 
(Special) 

9 9 

Health-care 
Sciences 

Bachelor of Medicine 
and Bachelor of Surgery  

92 57 

Bachelor of Science in 
Nursing  

24 24 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Faculty Programme of study 
No. Sat 
for Final 
Exam 

Total No. of 
Graduated 

C
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

tu
d

ie
s
 

BSc in Management 
(General) 

41 34 

BSc in Management 
Honours in 
Accountancy & 
Financial 
Management 

2 2 

BSc in Management 
Honours in 
Information 
Management 

2 2 

BSc in Management 
Honours in Human 
Resource 
Management 

1 1 

BSc in Management 
Honours in Marketing 
Management 

4 3 

BA in Communication 
(General) 

14 14 

BA in Communication 
(Special) 

6 6 

BA in Languages 
(General) 

43 42 

BA in Languages 
(Special) 

2 2 

Applied 
Sciences 

BSc in Applied 
Physics & Electronics 
(General) 

2 2 

Bachelor of Computer 
Science 

5 3 

Table 8: Undergraduate Output - External 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Programme of study 
General/ 
Special 

Total No. of 
Graduated 

Bachelor of Science General 5 

Bachelor of Business 
Administration 

General 17 

 

Table 9: Postgraduate Output 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Programme of study Degree 
Total No. of 
Graduated 

Master of Arts Master's 40 

Master of Development 
Economics 

Master's 28 

Master of Business 
Administration 

Master's 3 

 

Figure 5: Distribution of graduated among all faculties in Main Centre and Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 
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HUMAN RESOURCE 

The Main Centre, Eastern University, Sri Lanka and Trincomalee Campus marched towards its goals with 

the assistance of 718 permanent staff members, comprising 36.49% academic, 3.62% academic support, 

5.43 % administrative and 54.46% nonacademic staff. 

 

 
Figure 6: Proportion of Total Staff Strength – 2020 

in Main Centre, EUSL

 

 
Figure 7: Proportion of Total Staff Strength – 2020 

in Trincomalee Campus, EUSL

 

Table 10: Employee Classification 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Service Level Salary Scale Approved cadre* Filled cadre** 
Actual Cadre 

Vacancies 

Senior Level 
U-AC 3 to U-AC 5 
U-EX 2 to U-EX 3 
U-MO 1 to U-MO 2 

328*** 227 101 

Tertiary Level 
U-EX 1 

U-AS 1 to U-AS 2 
U-AC 1 to U-AC 2 

169 154 15 

Secondary 
Level 

U-MT 1 
U-MN 1 to U-MN 4 

225 143 82 

Primary Level U-PL 1 to 3 225 181 44 

*Including VC and DVC Cadres  

** Including temporary academic approved cadre (U-AC 1 to U-AC 2)    

*** Including academic and non-academic temporary filled cadre 
 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Service Level Salary Scale Approved cadre* Filled cadre** 
Actual Cadre 

Vacancies 

Senior Level 
U-AC 3 to U-AC 5 
U-EX 2 to U-EX 3 
U-MO 1 to U-MO 2 

87*** 52 35 

Tertiary Level 
U-EX 1 

U-AS 1 to U-AS 2 
U-AC 1 to U-AC 2 

42 28 14 

Secondary 
Level 

U-MT 1 
U-MN 1 to U-MN 4 

70 36 34 

Primary Level U-PL 1 to 3 102 35 67 

*Including Rector Cadre  

** Including temporary academic approved cadre (U-AC 1 to U-AC 2)    

*** Including academic temporary filled cadre 
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Table 11: Approved Cadre and Present Staff 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Service Level Staff Category 
Salary 
Scale 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

Permanent 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

T
o

ta
l 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

T
o

ta
l 

(1)     (2)     (3) (1)-(2) (1)-(2)-(3) 

Senior Level 

Academic Staff 

Vice Chancellor 
Deputy Vice Chancellor 
Professor (Chair) 
Senior Professor 
Professor 
Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
Senior Lecturer Gr. II 
Lecturer (Probationary) 

U-AC 3 to 
U-AC 5 

307 124 86 210 1 1 2 97 95 

Library Staff 

Librarian 
Senior Assistant Librarian 
Assistant Librarian 

U-AC 5 to 
U-AC 3 

7 3 2 5 0 0 0 2 2 

Administrative Staff & 
Financial Executive Staff 

U-EX 3 to 
U-Ex 2 

12 8 0 8 0 0 0 4 4 

Other Executive Staff U-Ex 2 1 0 1 1  0  0 0  0 0 

Medical Officers U-MO 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Tertiary Level 

Administrative Staff & 
Financial Executive Staff 

U-EX 1 18 10 6 16 0 0 0 2 2 

Other Executive Staff U-EX 1 7 2 0 2 0 0 0 5 5 

Academic  Support Staff 
U-AS 2 to 
U-AS 1 

19 12 6 18 0 0 0 1 1 

Temporary Lecturer/ 
Temporary Assistant 
Lecturer 

U-AC 2 to 
U-AC 1 

50 0 0 0 9 40 49 50 1 

Temporary Research 
Assistant 

3 0 0 0 1 0 1 3 2 

Temporary Demonstrator 72 0 0 0 16 52 68 72 4 

Secondary 
Level 

Technical Staff *3 

U-EX 2 

59 

0 1 1 0 0 0 

28 26 

U-EX 1 2 0 2 0 0 0 

U-MN 4 5 0 5 0 0 0 

U-MN 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 

U-MT 1 19 3 22 2 0 2 

Clerical & Allied Staff 

U-MN 4 

166 

6 16 22 0 0 0 

60 56 
U-MN 3 3 4 7 3 1 4 

U-MN 2 1 1 2 0 0 0 

U-MN 1 41 34 75 0 0 0 

Primary Level Primary Staff 

U-PL 3 

225 

52 1 53 0 0 0 

44 44 U-PL 2 12 8 20 0 0 0 

U-PL 1 95 13 108 0 0 0 
 Total 947 397 182 579 32 94 126 368 242 
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Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Service 
Level 

Staff Category 
Salary 
Scale 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a

d
re

 

Existing Staff 

Permanent 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Permanent Temporary 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

M
a

le
  

F
e

m
a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

(1)     (2)    (1)   

Senior Level 

Academic Staff 

Rector 
Senior Professor 
Professor 
Senior Lecturer Gr. I 
Senior Lecturer Gr. II 
Lecturer 
(Probationary) 

U-AC 3 to 
U-AC 5 

80 20 27 47 0 0 0 33 33 

Library Staff 

Senior Assistant 
Librarian 
Assistant Librarian 

U-AC 4 to 
U-AC 3 

2 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 

Administrative Staff & 
Financial Executive 
Staff 

U-Ex 2 4 3 0 3 0 0 0 1 1 

Medical Officers U-MO 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 

Tertiary Level 
  

Administrative Staff & 
Financial Executive 
Staff 

U-EX 1 5 3 2 5 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Executive Staff U-EX 1 3 1 0 1 0 0 0 2 2 

Academic  Support 
Staff 

U-AS 2 to 
U-AS 1 

11 7 1 8 0 0 0 3 3 

Temporary Lecturer/ 
Temporary Assistant 
Lecturer 

U-AC 2 to 
U-AC 1 

10 0 0 0 2 4 6 10 4 

Temporary 
Demonstrator 

13 0 0 0 2 6 8 13 5 

Secondary 
Level 

Technical Staff *3 U-MT 1 16 4 1 5 0 0 0 11 11 

Clerical & Allied Staff 

U-MN 4 

54 

2 2 4 0 0 0 

  
U-MN 3 3 3 6 0 0 0 

U-MN 2 1 0 1 0 0 0 

U-MN 1 10 10 20 0 0 0 

Primary Level Primary Staff 

U-PL 3 

102 

11 0 11 0 0 0 

  U-PL 2 2 0 2 0 0 0 

U-PL 1 18 4 22 0 0 0 
 Total 301 85 52 137 4 10 14 164 150 

 

ACADEMIC STAFF  

The following figures 8 and 9 show the proportional distribution of academic staff among Professors, Senior 

Lecturers and Lecturers in Main Centre, EUSL and Trincomalee Campus, EUSL respectively 
 

 
Figure 8: Proportion of Total Academic Staffs in 

Main Center, EUSL

 
 

Figure 9: Proportion of Total Academic Staffs in 
Trincomalee Campus, EUSL
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Table 12: Cadre Details of Academic Staff Including Library Staff 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Staff Category Salary Scale 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a
d

re
 Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

C
a
d

re
 

V
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 
C

a
d

re
 

V
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 Permanent Temporary Visiting 

M
a

le
  

F
e

m
a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

M
a

le
  

F
e

m
a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

M
a

le
  

F
e

m
a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

(1)     (2)     (3)   (4) (1)-(2) (1)-(2)-(3)-(4) 

Professor Chair U-AC 5 (II) 24 1 0 1 0 0 0 0  0 0 23 23 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) 

281 

1 1 2 1 0 1 

79 22 101 73 -31 

Professor U-AC 5 (II) 7 2 9 0 0 0 

Associate Professor U-AC 4 1 0 1 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr. I U-AC 3(I) 51 23 74 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr. II U-AC 3(II) 34 25 59 0 1 1 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 4 3 7 0 0 0 

Lecturer 
(Probationary) 

U-AC 3(IV) 24 32 56 1 0 1 

Temporary Lecturer/  
Temporary Assistant 
Lecturer 

U-AC 2 (Fixed)  50 0 0 0 9 40 49 0 0 0 50 1 

Temporary Research 
Assistant 

U-AC 2 /  
U-AC 1 (Fixed) 

3 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 3 2 

Temporary 
Demonstrator 

U-AC 1 (Fixed) 72 0 0 0 16 52 68 0 0 0 72 4 

Total   430 123 86 209 28 93 121 79 22 101 221 -1 

 

Library Staff 

Staff Category Salary Scale 
Approved 

Cadre 

Existing Staff Cadre 
Vacancies Male Female Total 

Librarian U-AC 5 (II) 1 1 0 1 0 

Deputy Librarian U-AC 4 1 0 0 0 1 

Senior Assistant Librarian 
U-AC 3 (II) / 
U-AC 3 (I) 

2 2 1 3 -1 

Assistant Librarian 
U-AC 3 (III) / 
U-AC 3 (IV) 

3 0 1 1 2 

Total  7 3 2 5 2 
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Trincomalee Campus, EUSL  

Staff Category Salary Scale 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
  

C
a
d

re
 

Existing Staff 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

C
a
d

re
 

V
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 

A
c
tu

a
l 
C

a
d

re
  

V
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 Permanent Temporary 

M
a

le
  

F
e

m
a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

M
a

le
  

F
e

m
a
le

 

T
o

ta
l 

(1)     (2)     (3) (1)-(2) (1)-(2)-(3) 

Professor Chair U-AC 5 (II) 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 7 

Senior Professor U-AC 5 (I) 

72 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

26 26 

Professor U-AC 5 (II) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Associate Professor U-AC 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr. I U-AC 3(I) 1 3 4 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr. II U-AC 3(II) 9 10 19 0 0 0 

Lecturer U-AC 3(III) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Lecturer (Probationary) U-AC 3(IV) 9 14 23 0 0 0 

Temporary Lecturer/  
Temporary Assistant Lecturer 

U-AC 2 (Fixed)  10 0 0 0 2 4 6 10 4 

Temporary Demonstrator U-AC 1 (Fixed) 13 0 0 0 2 6 8 13 5 

Total   102 19 27 46 4 10 14 56 42 

 

Library Staff 

Staff Category Salary Scale 
Approved 

Cadre 

Existing Staff Cadre 
Vacancies Male Female Total 

Senior Assistant Librarian 
U-AC 3 (II) / 
U-AC 3 (I) 

1 0 1 1 0 

Assistant Librarian 
U-AC 3 (III) / 
U-AC 3 (IV) 

1 0 1 1 0 

Total  2 0 2 2 0 

 
Table 13: Academic Cadre Details among the Faculties 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculty Agriculture Arts and Culture 
Commerce and 
Management 

Designation 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

Professor (Chair) 6 0 0 0 6 6 0 0 0 6 3 0 0 0 3 

Senior Professor 

32 

1 0 

10 -8 73 

0 0 

30 -23 36 

0 0 

7 2 

Professor 3 0 3 0 0 0 

Associate Professor 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr I 12 0 26 0 17 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr II 9 0 21 0 4 0 

Lecturer 1 0 1 0 0 0 

Lecturer (Probationary) 4 0 14 1 6 0 

Temporary Lecturer/  
Temporary Assistant Lecturer 

2 0 2 0 0 21 0 21 0 0 8 0 9 0 -1 

Temporary Research Assistant 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Temporary Demonstrator 11 0 11 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 51 30 13 10 -2 102 65 24 30 -17 47 27 9 7 4 
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Faculty Health-Care Sciences Science Technology 

Designation 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 

Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 

Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 

Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

Professor (Chair) 4 0 0 0 4 5 1 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Professor 

70 

0 1 

31 -1 48 

1 0 

13 -6 22 

0 0 

10 5 

Professor 0 0 3 0 0 0 

Associate Professor 0 0 1 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr I 6 0 13 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr II 16 1 8 0 1 0 

Lecturer 2 0 1 0 2 0 

Lecturer (Probationary) 14 0 14 0 4 0 

Temporary Lecturer/  
Temporary Assistant Lecturer 

0 0 0 0 0 14 0 13 0 1 5 0 4 0 1 

Temporary Research Assistant 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Temporary Demonstrator 33 0 34 0 -1 21 0 20 0 1 6 0 2 0 4 

Total 109 38 36 31 4 88 42 33 13 0 33 7 6 10 10 

 
 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Faculty 

Applied Sciences 
Commerce and 

Business Studies Computer Science, 

Physical Science 
Unit of Siddha Medicine 

Designation 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 

Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 

Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 C

a
d
re

 

Existing Cadre 

V
a

c
a

n
t 
C

a
d

re
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

P
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

T
e

m
p
o

ra
ry

 

V
is

it
in

g
 

Professor (Chair) 2 0 0 0 2 3 0 0 0 3 2 0 0 0 2 

Senior Professor 

23 

0 0 0 

10 17 

0 0 0 

7 32 

0 0 0 

9 

Professor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Associate Professor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr I 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 

Senior Lecturer Gr II 3 0 0 6 0 0 10 0 0 

Lecturer 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Lecturer (Probationary) 10 0 0 4 0 0 9 0 0 

Temporary Lecturer/  
Temporary Assistant Lecturer 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 6 0 4 

Temporary Demonstrator 6 0 4 0 2 7 0 4 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 31 13 4 0 14 27 10 4 0 13 44 23 6 0 15 
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Table 14: Academic Permanent Cadre Details among the Departments  

Main Centre, EUSL 

F
a
c
u
lt
y
 

Department/ 
Division/ 

Unit 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

(C
h

a
ir

) 

S
e

n
io

r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

S
e

n
io

r 
L

e
c
tu

re
r 

G
r.

1
 

S
e

n
io

r 
L

e
c
tu

re
r 

G
r.

1
I 

L
e

c
tu

re
r 

&
 

L
e

c
tu

re
r 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
a

ry
. 

Approved Cadre 6 32 

Agriculture 

Agriculture Biology - - - - 2 1 3 

Agriculture Chemistry - 1 - 1 1 1 1 

Agriculture Economics - - - - 3 1 - 

Agriculture Engineering - - - - 2 3 - 

Animal Science  - - - - 3 1 1 

Crop Science - - - 2 1 2 - 

Existing Cadre 0 30 

Cadre Vacancies 6 2 

Approved Cadre 6 73 

Arts and Culture 

Arabic - - - - 2 1 1 

Comparative Religion  - - - - 3 - - 

Education and Childcare - - - - 1 1 2 

Fine Arts - - - - 2 3 2 

Geography - - - - 2 2 2 

Hindu Civilization - - - - 1 2 2 

History - - - - - 3 1 

Islamic Studies - - - - 3 1 - 

Languages - - - 1 4 1 2 

Social Sciences - - - 2 5 3 1 

Philosophy and Value Studies - - - - 2 1 1 

Discipline of Christianity - - - - - 1 - 

Discipline of Economics - - - - 1 1 1 

English Language Teaching Unit - - - - - 1 - 

Existing Cadre 0 65 

Cadre Vacancies 6 8 

Approved Cadre 3 36 

Commerce and  
Management 

Commerce - - - - 5 - 4 

Economics - - - - 6 - 1 

Management - - - - 6 4 1 

Existing Cadre 0 27 

Cadre Vacancies 3 9 

Approved Cadre 4 70 

Health-care Sciences 

Clinical Science - - - - 3 7 5 

Human Biology - - - - 2 1 4 

Medical Education and Research - - - - 1 - 2 

Pathophysiology - - - - - 3 - 

Primary Healthcare - - - - - 2 1 

Supplementary health Sciences - - - - - 3 4 

Existing Cadre 0 38 

Cadre Vacancies 4 32 

Approved Cadre 5 48 

Science 

Botany - - - - 4 - 3 

Chemistry - - 1 - 2 1 2 

Mathematics - - - 2 3 6 4 

Physics 1 - - 1 2 - 2 

Zoology - 1 - - 2 - 3 

CICT - - - - - 1 1 

Existing Cadre 1 41 

Cadre Vacancies 4 7 

Approved Cadre 0 22 

Technology 
Bio-System Technology - - - - - - 6 

Multidisciplinary Studies - - - - - 1 - 

Existing Cadre 0 7 

Cadre Vacancies 0 15 
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Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

F
a

c
u
lt
y
 

Department/ 
Division/ 

Unit 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

(C
h

a
ir

) 

 S
e

n
io

r 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

 P
ro

fe
s
s
o

r 

S
e

n
io

r 
 

L
e

c
tu

re
r 

G
r.

1
 

S
e

n
io

r 
 

L
e

c
tu

re
r 

G
r.

1
I 

L
e

c
tu

re
r 

&
 L

e
c
t.
 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
a

ry
. 
 

Approved Cadre 5 40 

Applied Science 

Computer Science 0 0 0 0 0 2 5 

Physical Science 0 0 0 0 0 1 5 

Unit of Siddha Medicine 0 0 0 0 0 6 4 

Existing Cadre 0 23 

Cadre Vacancies 5 17 

Approved Cadre 2 32 

Communication and  
Business Studies 

Business and Management Studies 0 0 0 0 2 5 7 

Languages and Communication Studies 0 0 0 0 2 5 2 

Existing Cadre 0 23 

Cadre Vacancies 2 9 
 

NON-ACADEMIC STAFF  

Table 15: Non-Academic staff information among the departments 
 

 

 

 

 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Staff Category Salary Scale 
Approved  

Cadre 

Existing Staff Permanent 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 
Cadre  

Vacancies 
Permanent Contract 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 
(1)   (2)   (3) (1)-(2) (1)-(2)-(3) 

Administrative Staff 
& Financial Staff 

U-EX 3 2 2 0 2 - - 0 0 0 

U-EX 2 10 6 2 8 - - 0 2 2 

U-EX 1 18 10 6 16 - - 0 2 2 

Other Executive 
Staff 

U-EX 2 1 0 1 1 - - 0 0 0 

U-EX 2/ U-EX 1 4 2 0 2 - - 0 2 2 

U-EX 1 3 - - 0 - - 0 3 3 

Medical Officer U-MO 1 1 1 0 1 - - 0 0 0 

Academic  Support 
Staff 

U-AS 2  7 3 4 7 - - 0 0 0 

U-AS 2/ U-AS 1 10 7 2 9 - - 0 1 1 

U-AS 1 2 2 0 2 - - 0 0 0 

Technical Staff 

U-EX 2 0 0 1 1 - - 0 -1 -1 

U-EX 1 0 2 0 2 - - 0 -2 -2 

U-MN 4 0 5 0 5 - - 0 -5 -5 

U-MN 2 1 1 - 1 - - 0 0 0 

U-MT 1 58 19 3 22 2 0 2 36 34 

Clerical & Allied 
Staff 

U-MN 4 0 6 16 22 - - 0 -22 -22 

U-MN 3 9 3 4 7 3 1 4 2 -2 

U-MN 2 0 1 1 2 - - 0 -2 -2 

U-MN 1 157 41 34 75 - - 0 82 82 

Primary Staff 

U-PL 3 27 52 1 53 - - 0 -26 -26 

U-PL 2 44 12 8 20 - - 0 24 24 

U-PL 1 154 95 13 108 - - 0 46 46 

Total  508 270 96 366 5 1 6 142 136 
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Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Staff Category Salary Scale 
Approved  
Cadre 

Existing Staff Permanent 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Actual 
Cadre  

Vacancies 
Permanent Contract 

Male Female Total Male Female Total 
(1)   (2)   (3) (1)-(2) (1)-(2)-(3) 

Administrative Staff 
& Financial Staff 

U-EX 3 0 - - 0 - - 0 0 0 

U-EX 2 4 3 0 3 - - 0 1 1 

U-EX 1 5 3 2 5 - - 0 0 0 

Other Executive Staff U-EX 2/ U-EX 1 3 1 0 1 - - 0 2 2 

Medical Officer U-MO 1 1 0 0 1 - - 0 0 0 

Academic  Support 
Staff 

U-AS 2  7 3 4 7 - - 0 0 0 

U-AS 1 4 2 0 2 - - 0 2 2 

Technical Staff U-MT 1 16 4 1 5 - - 0 11 11 

Clerical & Allied 
Staff 

U-MN 4 0 2 2 4 - - 0 -4 -4 

U-MN 3 8 3 3 6 3 1 4 2 -2 

U-MN 2 2 1 0 1 - - 0 1 1 

U-MN 1 44 10 10 20 - - 0 24 24 

Primary Staff 

U-PL 3 12 11 0 11 2 0 2 1 -1 

U-PL 2 8 2 0 2 - - 0 6 6 

U-PL 1 82 18 4 22 - - 0 60 60 

Total  196 63 26 90 5 1 6 106 100 

 
Table 16: Non-Academic staff information among the departments 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Faculties/ Departments/ Sections/ Branches/ Units 
Approved 

Cadre 

Senior 

Level 

Staff 

Tertiary 
Level 
Staff 

Secondary 
Level Staff 

Primary 
Level 
Staff 

Actual 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Office of the VC and VC Lodge 5 - 1 2 3 -1 

Office of the Registrar  14 1 2 4 3 4 

General Service Division 8 1 - 2 4 1 

Capital Works and Planning 4 1 - 2 1 0 

Strategic Planning and Statistical Unit 3 - 2 - 1 0 

Legal & Documentation Division 3 - - - - 3 

Staff Development Centre 1 - - 1 1 -1 

Academic/ Establishments Branch 9 1 1 6 1 0 

Non-Academic/ Establishments Branch 6 1 - 3 1 1 

Internal Audit Unit 5 1 - 3 1 0 

Financial Administration 20 1 3 10 2 4 

Store and Supplies Services 11 - 1 6 2 2 

Security Services 29 - - 3 23 3 

Transport Services 15 - - - 11 4 

Faculty of Agriculture 58 - 2 14 16 26 

Faculty of Arts and Culture 31 1 - 8 10 12 

Faculty of Commerce and Management 16 - 1 8 5 2 

Faculty of Health care Sciences  58 - 2 18 18 20 

Faculty of Science 48 - 1 9 21 17 

Faculty of Technology 15 - 1 5 3 6 

Centre for Information and Communication Technology 10 - 6 2 1 0 

English Language Teaching Unit 6 - 4 1 1 0 

Centre for External Degree and Extension Courses  10 - 3 2 2 3 

Academic Affairs Division 13 1 - 6 1 5 

Library Services 20 - 1 7 6 6 

Health Services 4 1 - - 1 2 

Physical Education Unit 12 1 3 - 5 3 

Student Affairs Division 9 1 - 5 - 3 

Career Guidance Unit 3 - 1 1 - 1 

Department of Maintenance 44 - 1 4 29 10 

Hostels 18 - - 5 8 5 

Total 508 12 36 137 181 142 
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Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Faculties/ Departments/ Sections/ Branches/ 
Units 

Approved 
Cadre 

Senior 

Level 

Staff 

Tertiary 
Level 
Staff 

Secondary 
Level Staff 

Primary 
Level 
Staff 

Actual 
Cadre 

Vacancies 

Office of the Rector 3 - - 1 1 1 

Office of the Deputy Registrar 5 -  1 1 3 

Faculty of Communication and Business Studies 12 - 2 3 3 4 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 15 - 4 2 3 6 

Unit of Siddha Medicine 10 - - 2 - 8 

General Administration 66 1 - 2 10 53 

Finance 8 - 1 4 1 2 

Supplies 4 - 1 3 - 0 

Maintenance 22 - 1 3 8 10 

Academic Affairs Division 6 - 1 4 1 0 

Students Affairs Division 8 1 - 6 1 0 

Capital works 4 1 - - 1 2 

Library 11 - - 2 4 5 

Physical Education Unit 5 - 1 - - 4 

Establishments Branch 5 - 1 2 1 1 

Information Technology Center 7 - 4 - - 3 

Career Guidance Unit 1 - - - - 1 

Health Centre 2 - - - - 2 

Medical Officer 1 - - - - 1 

Internal Audit Unit 1 - - 1 - 0 

Total 196 3 16 36 35 106 
 
 

 

ACHIEVEMENTS  

RESEARCH, INNOVATION AND PUBLICATIONS 

Table 16: Publications done by the Academic Staff in 2020

Main Centre, EUSL 

Publication Category 
Agriculture 

Arts and 
Culture 

Commerce and 
Management 

L F L F L F 

No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals including e-journals - 24 - 8 - 20 

No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals including e-journals 11 - 1 - 16 2 

Conference 
Proceedings 

No. of papers published as full papers 7 1 5 - 2 3 

No. of abstract publications 14 - 10 - 1 - 

No. of Book Chapters published - 2 - - - 2 

No. of Books/Text Books published in the area of expertise  
By a publisher - - - - - - 

By an author - - - - 2 1 

 

Publication Category 
Health-care 

Sciences 
Science Technology Library 

L F L F L F L F 

No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals including e-journals 2 31 - 34 - 5 - - 

No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals including e-journals 19 - 4 - - - 3 - 

Conference 
Proceedings 

No. of papers published as full papers - - 2 2 - - - - 

No. of abstract publications 5 3 5 1 - - - - 

No. of Book Chapters published - - - - - - 3 - 

No. of Books/Text Books published in the area of expertise  
By a publisher - - - - - - - - 

By an author - - 1 - - - 1 - 
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Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Publication Category 
Applied Sciences 

Communication and 
Business Studies 

L F L F 

No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals including e-journals - 43 - 11 

No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals including e-journals - - - - 

Conference 
Proceedings 

No. of papers published as full papers - 1 - 6 

No. of abstract publications - 3 - - 

No. of Book Chapters published - - - - 

No. of Books/Text Books published in the area of expertise  
By a publisher - - - - 

By an author - - - - 

L - Published Local  F - Published Foreign 

 

PUBLICATIONS IN REFEREED INDEXED JOURNALS INCLUDING E-
JOURNALS 

The details of the research articles published in refereed indexed journals including e-journals in the year 
2020 are given below. 

FACULTY OF AGRICULTURE 

 Maárof, M. I. N., Girma T. Chala, Chaudhry, M. B. and 
Premakumar, K. (2020). “A Comparative Study of 
Electricity Generation from Industrial Wastewater 
through Microbial Fuel Cell”.  PLATFORM - A Journal of 
Engineering, eISSN: 2636-9877 
 

 Prasannath, K., Galea, V.J. and Akinsanmi, O.A. (2020). 
“Characterisation of leaf spots caused by 
Neopestalotiopsis clavispora and Colletotrichum 
siamense in macadamia in Australia”. Eur J Plant Pathol 
156, 1219–1225, doi.org/10.1007/s10658-020-01962-6 

 

 Davida, L. S., Abdollahia, M. R., Bedfordb, M. R. and 
Ravindran, V. (2020). “Effect of age and dietary crude 
protein content on the apparentileal calcium digestibility 
of limestone in broiler chickens”. Animal Feed Science 
and Technology, DOI: 10.1016/j.anifeedsci.2020.114468 

 

 Fernando, W. S. L. V. and Karunarathna, B. (2020). 
"Effect of Foliar Application of Banana Pseudostem Sap 
on Yield of Cowpea (Vigna unguiculata L. Walp.)". 
International Letters of Natural Sciences, Vol. 79, pp. 9-
15, 2020. 

 

 Buddhika, W. M. C., Srikrishnah, S. and Sutharsan, S. 
(2020). “Effects of Different Levels of Shade on the 
Growth and Quality Characters of Coleus (Plectranthus 
scutellarioides) var. “Chocolate Covered Cherry””. 
Journal of Agricultural Science & Crop Research.  

 

 Sampath, D., Srikrishnah, S. and Sutharsan, S. (2020). 
“Effects of Different Potassium Levels on the Growth and 
Development of Cordyline fruticosa Var ‘Purple 
Compacta’”. Scholars Journal of Agriculture and 
Veterinary Sciences, ISSN 2348–8883, DOI: 
10.36347/sjavs.2020.v07i05.004. 

 

 Prasannath, K., Dharmadasa, N., Menike, N. and Devika 
M. De Costa (2020). “Evaluation of the effects of an eco-
friendly crop protection system on management of 
whitefly-vectored chilli leaf curl virus disease in Sri 
Lanka”. Phytoparasitica 48, 117–129 (2020). 
https://doi.org/10.1007/s12600-019-00773-8. 

 

 Geretharan, T., Jeyakumar, P. Bretherton, M. and 
Anderson, C. W. N. (2020). “Fluorine and white clover: 
Assessing fluorine's impact on Rhizobium 
leguminosarum”. Journal of Environmental Quality, 
https://doi.org/10.1002/jeq2.20089. 

 

 Thanusha, R., Srikrishnah, S. and Sutharsan, S. (2020). 
“Growth and quality Reponses of Polycias (Polyscias 
balfouriana L. var. ‘Marginata’) to different levels of 
shade”. International Journal of Botany Studies, ISSN: 
2455-541X. 

 

 David, L. S. Abdollahi, M. R. Bedford, M. R. and 
Ravindran, V. (2020). “True ileal calcium digestibility in 
soybean meal and canola meal, and true ileal 
phosphorous digestibility in maize-soybean meal and 
maize-canola meal diets, without and with microbial 
phytase, for broiler growers and finishers”. British Poultry 
Science, DOI:10.1080/00071668.2020.1849559. 

 

 Dilip Kumara, W. G. D. and Bawatharani, R. (2020). 
“IMPACT OF MACHINERY TRAFFIC INDUCED 
COMPACTION ON SELECTED SOIL PROPERTIES”. 
International Research Journal of Modernization in 
Engineering Technology and Science, ISSN: 2582-5208. 

 

 Pagthinathan, M. (2020). “Influence of Partially Purify 
Enzyme in Experimental Cheddar Cheese Production". 
European Journal of Agriculture and Food Sciences, 
2(2). https://doi.org/10.24018/ejfood.2020.2.2.27. 

 

 Sinthuja, S. and Prasannath, K. (2020). “Management of 
postharvest anthracnose of banana using inorganic salts 
alone and in combination with hot water”. Plant 
Pathology & Quarantine 10(1), 44–52, Doi 
10.5943/ppq/10/1/5. 

 

 Gayathri, U., and Seran, T. (2020). “Okra (Abelmoschus 
esculentus L.) yield influenced by Albizia leaf mould and 
banana peel with half dosage of NP chemical fertilizers”. 
Bangladesh Journal of Scientific and Industrial 
Research, 55(4), 273-282. 
doi.org/10.3329/bjsir.v55i4.50966 

 

https://doi.org/10.1007/s12600-019-00773-8
https://doi.org/10.1002/jeq2.20089
https://doi.org/10.24018/ejfood.2020.2.2.27
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 Rajendran, M., Gunawardena, E. R. N. and Dayawansa, 
N. D. K. (2020). “Runoff Prediction in an Ungauged 
Catchment of Upper Deduru Oya Basin, Sri Lanka: A 
Comparison of HEC-HMS and WEAP Models”. 
International Journal of Progressive Sciences and 
Technologies, ISSN: 2509-0119. 

 

 Raveenthira, V. and Seran, T. H. (2020). “Seed yield of 
Abelmoschus esculentus L. as influenced by the 
combined use of inorganic and organic fertilizers”. 
Research Journal of Agriculture and Forestry Sciences, 
ISSN 2320-6063. 

 

 Nadeeka Priyadarshani, W. M. and Seran, T. H. (2020). 
“The effects of goat manure and sugarcane molasses on 
the growth and yield of beetroot (Beta vulgaris L.)”.  
Journal of Agricultural Sciences, Belgrade 2020 Volume 
65, Issue 4, https://doi.org/10.2298/JAS2004321N. 

 
 Upendri, H. F. L. and Seran, T. H. (2020). “Effect of 

explants and low cost medium on morphogenic response 
of aerial stem and rhizome bud explants of turmeric 
(Curcuma longa L.) for plant regeneration”. Journal of 
Horticulture and Plant Research, ISSN : 2624-814X. 

 

 Narmhikaa, K., Srikrishnah, S., Sutharsan, S. and 
Mayoory, J. (2020). “Influence of Different Shade Levels 
on the Growth and Quality of Polyscias guilfoylei 
variegata in the Batticaloa District of Sri Lanka”. 
International Journal of Research Publications. 

 

 Narmhikaa, K., Srikrishnah, S. and Sutharsan, S. (2020). 
“Influence of Different Shade Levels on the Growth and 
Quality of Codiaeum variegatum var. Bush on fire in the 
Batticaloa District”. International Journal of Research 
Publications. 

 

 Pagthinathan, M. (2020). “Characterization and 
evaluation of physicochemical and sensory acceptability 
of ice creams incorporated with processed ginger”. 
European Journal of Food Science and Technology, 
ISSN: 2056 – 5801. 

 

 Pagthinathan, M. (2020). “Assessment of Shelf-life of 
Curry Leave Extract Added Paneer Made from Cow 
Milk”. International Journal of Scientific and Research 
Publications, ISSN 2250-3153, DOI: 
10.29322/IJSRP.10.04.2020.p10091. 
 

 Pagthinathan, M. (2020). “Impact of physicochemical 
and sensory acceptability of clove oil added butter.” 
International Journal of Scientific and Research 
Publications, ISSN 2250-3153, DOI: 
10.29322/IJSRP.10.05.2020.p101100. 

 

 Hariharan, G. and Prasannath, K. (2020). “Recent 
Advances in Molecular Diagnostics of Fungal Plant 
Pathogens: A Mini Review”. Frontiers in cellular and 
infection microbiology, ISSN: 2235-2988, 
https://doi.org/10.3389/fcimb.2020.600234

FACULTY OF ARTS AND CULTURE 

 Arulmoly, C. and Branavan, A. (2020). “A study regarding 
relations b/w parental involvement and students’ 
achievement in mathematics, science in batticaloa, Sri 
Lanka”. An International Multidisciplinary Research 
Journal, DOI: 10.5958/2249-7137.2020.00505.4.   

 Kennedy, J. and Sujendran, A. (2020). “COVID–19 and 

Hitches in Conducting Examination with Special 

Reference to Faculty of Arts & Culture, Eastern 

University, Sri Lanka”. International Journal of Social 

Sciences and Management Review, ISSN: 2582-0176.  

https://doi.org/10.2298/JAS2004321N
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 Krishnamohan, T. (2020). “The Ethno-political 
Polarization Scenario in Sri Lanka's Presidential Election 
held in November 2019: A Critical View”: International 
Journal of Research and Innovation in Social Science, 
ISSN 2454-6186. 

 

 Jazeel, M. I. M., Fowzul, M. B. and Rakeeza, A. R. F. 
(2020). “THE JUDGEMENTS OF QUAZI COURTS IN 
SRI LANKA: AN ANALYSIS (,yq;if fhop 
ePjpkd;wq;fspd; jPHg;gspf;Fk; Kiwik xU gFg;gha;T)”. 
Muallim Journal of Social Sciences and Humanities, 
doi.org/10.33306/mjssh/50 

 Krishnamohan, T. and K. Sathiyasegar (2020); The Ninth 
Parliamentary Election of Sri Lanka in 2020: “An Analysis 
of the Outcomes; International Journal of Scientific and 
Research”. Publications (IJSRP) 10(10) ISSN: 2250-
3153, doi.org/10.29322/IJSRP.10.10.2020.p10659 

 

 Pathmanandakumar, V. (2020). “A Study of Land Cover 
Change Detection in Oddusuddan DS Division of 
Mullaitivu District in Sri Lanka Based on GIS and RS 
Technology.” World News of Natural Sciences. 

 

 

FACULTY OF COMMERCE AND MANAGEMENT 

 Jeyarajah, S. (2020). “An empirical study on the import 
demand in Sri Lanka, ARDL approach”. International 
Journal of Humanities and Social Science Research, 
ISSN: 2455-2070. 
 

 Neranjani, V. and Andrew, A. (2020). “Association 
between Peer Group Influence, Alcohol 
Consumption,and Attitudes of Youth towards Social 
Responsibility”. International Journal of Research, p-
ISSN: 2348-6848.  

 

 Maheswaranathan, S. (2020). “Casual Association 
between Economic Performance, real Domestic Product 
and Carbon Dioxide Emissions in Sri Lanka: Granger 
Causality Test”. International Journal of Research and 
Analytical Reviews (IJRAR) www.ijrar.org. 

 

 Sinthuja, V. and Soundaralingam, A. (2020). “Factors 
Influencing Organic Food Purchase Intention in 
Manmunai Northds Division of the Batticaloa District”. 
International Journal of Research, ISSN 2348-6848. 

 

 Anton Arulrajah, A., Senthilnathan, S., and Rathnayake, 
M. P. (2020). “Green information technology and 
environmental performance of the banks”. Journal of 
Governance & Regulation, 9(3), 27-39. 
https://doi.org/10.22495/jgrv9i3art2. 

 

 Madhushi, S. K., Kishokumar, R. and Ragel, V. R. 
(2020). “Impact of Service Innovation on Organizational 
Performance; Special reference to Licensed Commercial 
Banks in Sri Lanka”. International Journal for Scientific 
Research & Development| Vol. 8, Issue 8, 2020 | ISSN 
(online): 2321-0613. 

 

 Bhavan, T. (2020). “Is Corruption ‘Grease’ Or ‘Sand’ in 
the Wheels of Foreign Direct Investment Inflows in the 
South Asian Economies?”. Development Policy Review 
8(3):185-193 DOI: 
10.18488/journal.107.2020.83.185.193. 

 

 Malsha, K. P. P. H. G. N., Arulrajah, A. A., & 
Senthilnathan, S. (2020). “Mediating role of employee 
green behaviour towards sustainability performance of 
banks”. Journal of Governance & Regulation, 9(2), 92-
102. https://doi.org/10.22495/jgrv9i2art7. 

 

 Sewanthy and Kennedy, F. B. (2020). “MOBILE PHONE 
BRAND EQUITY AND PURCHASE INTENTION: THE 
MEDIATING EFFECT OF BRAND PREFERENCE”. 
International Journal of Research -GRANTHAALAYAH, 
8(11), doi.org/10.29121/granthaalayah.v8.i11.2020.2272. 

 Kaluarachchi, D. G. P. (2020). “Shareholders’ attitude 
towards financial statements disclosure: evidence from 
Sri Lanka”. Journal of Accounting, Finance and Auditing 
Studies, 6(3), 193-204. 

 

 Suresh, K., Sivguru, T., Darmalingam, S., Jeyapraba, S. 
and Wilson, C. (2020). “The Impact of COVID -19 on the 
Sri Lankan Tourism Sector and Its Future Prospects”. 
American Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences 
Research. 

 

 Jayarathne, P. G. P. J., Thevanes, N. and Anton 
Arulrajah, A. (2020). “The Impact of Employee Green 
Behavior on Green Banking Performance of Select 
Private Sector Banks in Sri Lanka”. IUP Journal of Bank 
Management; Hyderabad Vol. 19, Iss. 2. 

 

 Priyanka, P., Thevanes, N. and Anton Arulrajah, A. 
(2020). “The Impact of Perceived Corporate Social 
Responsibility on Job Satisfaction and Organizational 
Citizenship Behavior in Sri Lanka Telecom”. IUP Journal 
of Organizational Behavior; Hyderabad Vol. 19, Iss. 2. 

 

 Maheswaranathan, S. (2020). “The Relationship 
between Electric Power Consumption, Foreign Direct 
Investment and Economic Growth in Sri Lanka”. South 
Asian Journal of Social Studies and Economics, 6(1), 21-
31. https://doi.org/10.9734/sajsse/2020/v6i130158. 

 

 Anton Arulrajah, A. (2020). “The Study on the Differences 
in Demographic Characteristics on Performance of 
Academic Employees”. International Journal of 
Research p-ISSN: 2348-6848. 

 

 Pushpakaran, K. (2020). “The study on the Relationship 
between Working Environment and employees’ job 
Performance – with special reference to employees in 
the financial institutions”. International Journal of 
Research, ISSN 2348-6848. 

 

 Kajenthini, G. (2020). “Tourism Price Competitiveness as 
a Driver of International Tourist Arrivals”. American 
Journal of Humanities and Social Sciences Research, e-
ISSN: 2378-703X. 
 

 Thanushanth, K. and Kennady, F. B. (2020). “Brand 
Equity And Brand Loyalty: The Mediating Effect Of 
Customer Satisfaction A Comparative Study On 
Companies With Brand Change”. International Journal of 
Scientific and Research Publications, DOI: 
10.29322/IJSRP.10.12.2020.p10850. 

http://www.ijrar.org/
https://doi.org/10.22495/jgrv9i3art2
https://doi.org/10.22495/jgrv9i2art7
https://doi.org/10.29121/granthaalayah.v8.i11.2020.2272
https://doi.org/10.9734/sajsse/2020/v6i130158
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FACULTY OF HEALTH-CARE SCIENCES 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V., Vijayakanth, V. and 
Thamilvannan, N. (2020). “A Case of Linear IgA 
Dermatosis in a Young Child”. Asian Journal of Research 
in Dermatological Science.  

 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V. and Dayasiri, K. (2020). “A case 
report of dengue hemorrhagic fever complicated with 
diabetic ketoacidosis in a child: challenges in clinical 
management”. BMC Pediatr 20, 403. 
https://doi.org/10.1186/s12887-020-02300-9. 

 

 Thirukumar, M., Thadchanamoorthy, V. and Dayasiri, K. 
(2020). “Adolescent Pregnancy and Outcomes: A 
Hospital-Based Comparative Study at a Tertiary Care 
Unit in Eastern Province, Sri Lanka”. Cureus 12(12): 
e12081. doi:10.7759/cureus.12081. 

 

 Markandu, T. (2020). “Analysis of Caesarean Sections 
Using Robson Classification in Teaching Hospital 
Batticalao, Sri Lanka”. Asian Research Journal of 
Gynaecology and Obstetrics, 4(3), 6-11. Retrieved from 
https://www.journalarjgo.com/index.php/ARJGO/article/
view/30139. 

 

 Thirukumar, M. and Karunakaran, K. E. (2020) 
“Anaphylaxis in Pregnancy”. Open Journal of Obstetrics 
and Gynecology, 10, 698-707. doi: 
10.4236/ojog.2020.1050063. 

 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V., Kavinda, D., Majitha, S. I., 
Amanda J Hooper and John R Burnett (2020). “ANNALS 
EXPRESS: Homozygous autosomal recessive 
hypercholesterolaemia in a South Asian child presenting 
with multiple cutaneous xanthomata”. Annals of Clinical 
Biochemistry, DOI: 10.1177/0004563220961755. 

 

 Fasry, A. A., Dissanayake, D. M., Wanasinghe, D. C., 
Jenitha, J., Damayanthi, R.P. and Karunakaran, K. E. 
(2020). “Awareness of Cervical Cancer and Its 
Prevention: A Survey at Eastern University, Sri Lanka”. J 
Health Care and Research. 2020 May 12;1(2):55-64. 

 

 Kavinda, D., Thadchanamoorthy,V. Kaushika, T., Aruni, 
R. and Parthipan, N. (2020). “Case Report Clinical and 
Radiological Characterization of an Infant with Caudal 
Regression Syndrome Type III”. Case Reports in 
Neurology, DOI: 10.1155/2020/8827281. 

 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V. and Kavinda, D. (2020). "Case 
Report Maternal-Fetal Perinatal Transmission of 
Staphylococcal Infections: A Report of Two Neonates". 
Case Reports in Pediatrics. 

 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V. Thirukumar, M. Kavinda, D., 
Thamilvannan, N. and Judy Jeyakumar (2020). “Case 
Report Trichotemnomania in an Adolescent Girl: A Case 
Report of an Asian Child and Literature Review”. Case 
Reports in Dermatological Medicine, DOI: 
10.1155/2020/6615250. 

 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V. and Kavinda, D. (2020). 
"Challenges in Diagnosis of Chronic Osteomyelitis: A 
Case Report from Sri Lanka”. International Journal of 
Human and Health Sciences, ISSN 2523-692X, DOI: 
10.31344/ijhhs.v5i1.246. 

 

 Sathananthan, S. (2020). “Comparative study of physio-
chemical parameters with the Distribution of 
Phytoplankton assemblage according to seasonal 
variation in Batticaloa Lagoon and Valaichenai Lagoon”. 
European International Journal of Science and 
Technology, ISSN: 2304-9693. 

 

 Mayurathan, P., Horne C, Sarr L, et al. (2020). 
“Cytomegalovirus-Associated Splenic Infarction in a 
Young Female Patient”. Cureus 12(10): e10801. 
doi:10.7759/cureus.10801. 

 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V. and Dayasiri, K. (2020). “Dengue 
hemorrhagic fever as a rare cause of chronic immune 
thrombocytopenic purpura—a pediatric case report”. 
Trop Med Health 48, 59 (2020). 
https://doi.org/10.1186/s41182-020-00248-1. 

 

 Narayanasami, E., Umakanth, M. and Suganthan, N. 
(2020). “Dengue Hemorrhagic Fever Complicated With 
Hemophagocytic Lymphohistiocytosis in an Adult With 
Diabetic Ketoacidosis”. Cureus 12(8): e10172. 
doi:10.7759/cureus.10172. 

 

 Youhasan, P., Yan Chen, Mataroria Lyndon and Marcus 
Alexander Henning (2020). “Development and validation 
of a measurement scale to assess nursing students’ 
readiness for the flipped classroom in Sri Lanka”. Journal 
of Educational Evaluation for Health Professions, DOI: 
10.3352/jeehp.2020.17.41. 

 

 Sathananthan, S. (2020). “Distribution and abundance of 
the phytoplankton as bio indicators according to 
seasonal and water quality variations in selected 
locations of Batticaloa lagoon”. European International 
Journal of Science and Technology, ISSN: 2304-9693. 

 

 Dayasiri K, Thadchanamoorthy V, Thudugala K, et al. 
(December 01, 2020). “Focal Status and Sub-Ependymal 
Tumor as Features of the First Presentation in a Child 
with Tuberous Sclerosis”. Cureus 12(12): e11816. 
doi:10.7759/cureus.11816. 

 

 Thirukumar, M., Dineshanth Packianathan and Melaka 
Kodikara (2020). “Intra Vaginal Foreign Bodies: An 
Uncommon Cause of Vaginitis”. Asian Research Journal 
of Gynaecology and Obstetrics. 

 

 Thadchanamoorthy V, Dayasiri K (2020). “Invasive 
Streptococcus Pneumoniae Septicemia Complicated 
with Hemolytic Uremic Syndrome and Meningitis”. 
Cureus 12(9): e10644. doi:10.7759/cureus.10644. 

 

 Karthijekan, K. and Angela, A. A. (2020). “Nutritional 
Status and Dietary Practices among University Students 
in Sri Lanka”. International Journal of Scientific and 
Research Publications (ISSN: 2250-3153), DOI: 
http://dx.doi.org/10.29322/IJSRP.10.10.2020.p10648. 

 

 Sujendran, S., Lokeesan, V., Youhasan, P., 
Sathaananthan, T. and Karunakaran, K. E. (2020). 
“Nutritional Status of Primary School Children in Eastern 
Sri Lanka”. International Journal of Healthcare Sciences, 
ISSN: 2348-5728 
  

https://doi.org/10.1186/s12887-020-02300-9
https://www.journalarjgo.com/index.php/ARJGO/article/view/30139
https://www.journalarjgo.com/index.php/ARJGO/article/view/30139
https://doi.org/10.1186/s41182-020-00248-1
http://dx.doi.org/10.29322/IJSRP.10.10.2020.p10648
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 Sivapatham, V., Thalgahagoda, S., Rathnayake, W. and 

Bogahapitiya, A. (2020). “Parameningeal embryonal 
rhabdomyosarcoma presenting as facial nerve palsy in a 
young girl. Sri Lanka”. Journal of Child Health, 49(4), 
pp.412–413. DOI: //doi.org/10.4038/sljch.v49i4.9281. 

 

 Sivapatham, V. and Seneviratne, S. N. (2020). “Posterior 
mediastinal ganglioneuroma presenting with wheezing in 
a young Sri Lankan girl. Sri Lanka”. Journal of Child 
Health, 49(3), pp.303–305. DOI: 
http://doi.org/10.4038/sljch.v49i3.9156. 

 

 Umakanth, M., Narayanasami, E. and Suganthan, N. 
(2020). “Profuse Sweating and Hot Flashes: An Unusual 
Presentation of Post-Dengue Fatigue Syndrome”. 
Cureus 12(8): e10024. doi:10.7759/cureus.10024. 

 

 Thadchanamoorthy, V. and Dayasiri, K. (2020). 
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Higgs bosons in the bbZZ channel in proton-proton 
collisions at √s=13 TeV” PHYSICAL REVIEW D, ISSN: 
2470-0010, DOI: org/10.1103/PhysRevD.102.032003 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Search for a light pseudoscalar Higgs 
boson in the boosted μμττ final state in proton-proton 
collisions at √s = 13 TeV”. Journal of High Energy 
Physics, ISSN: 1029-8479, DOI: 
https://doi.org/10.1007/JHEP08(2020)139. 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Search for disappearing tracks in proton-
proton collisions at √s = 13 TeV”. Physics Letters B, 
ISSN: 0370-2693, DOI: 
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.physletb.2020.135502.  

 

https://doi.org/10.1007/JHEP11(2020)039
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.physletb.2020.135710
https://doi.org/10.1140/epjc/s10052-020-08817-8
https://doi.org/10.1140/epjc/s10052-020-08701-5
https://doi.org/10.1140/epjc/s10052-020-08701-5
https://doi.org/10.1007/JHEP08(2020)139
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.physletb.2020.135502
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 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Measurement of the CP-violating phase ϕs 
in the B0

s → J/ψϕ(1020) → μ+μ−K+K− channel in proton-
proton collisions at √s= 13 TeV”. Physics Letters B, ISSN: 
0370-2693, DOI: 10.1016/j.physletb.2021.136188. 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Search for a light charged Higgs boson in 
the H±→cs channel in proton-proton collisions at √s= 13 
TeV” PHYSICAL REVIEW D, ISSN: 2470-0010, DOI : 
10.1103/PhysRevD.102.072001. 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Measurements of tt¯H production and the 
CP structure of the Yukawa interaction between the 
Higgs boson and the top quark in the diphoton decay 
channel”. Physical Review Letters, ISSN: 0031-9007, 
DOI: 10.1103/PhysRevLett.125.061801. 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Measurement of the W boson rapidity, 
helicity, and differential cross sections in pp collisions at 
√s= 13 TeV”. PHYSICAL REVIEW D, ISSN: 2470-0010. 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Electron and photon reconstruction and 
identification with the CMS experiment at the CERN 
LHC”. Journal of Instrumentation, ISSN: 1748-0221. 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Measurement of the Z boson differential 
production cross section using its invisible decay mode 
(Z →νν¯) in proton-proton collisions at √s = 13 TeV”. 
Journal of High Energy Physics, ISSN: 1029-8479. 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Search for nonresonant Higgs boson pair 
production in final states with two bottom quarks and two 
photons in proton-proton collisions at √s = 13 TeV”. 
Journal of High Energy Physics, ISSN: 1029-8479. 

 

 The CMS Collaboration, Sirunyan, A. M., Tumasyan, A. 
et al. (2020). “Search for supersymmetry in final states 
with two oppositely charged same-flavor leptons and 
missing transverse momentum in proton-proton 
collisions at √s = 13 TeV”. Journal of High Energy 
Physics, ISSN: 1029-8479. 

 

FACULTY OF COMMUNICATION AND BUSINESS STUDIES, TRINCOMALEE CAMPUS 

 Jeniston Delima, V. (2020). "Impact of Personality Traits 
on Employees Job Performance in Batticaloa Teaching 
Hospital" Iconic Research and Engineering Journals 
Volume 2 Issue 12. 

 

 Jayasundara, N. S. (2020). “Language Acquisition 
Patterns of a Bilingual Child: A Psycholinguistic 
Approach”. International Journal of Scientific and 
Research Publications, ISSN: 2250-3153, DOI: 
//dx.doi.org/10.29322/IJSRP.10.08.2020.p10458. 

 

 Sriram, S., Jayawardhana, K. G. L. A. N. S. and Jairus, 
J. (2020). “THE MOST TUNING RADIO FREQUENCIES 
AMONG TAMIL UNIVERSITY STUDENTS 
COMMUNITY: A USERS AND GRATIFICATION STUDY 
ON THE RADIO AUDIENCE”. International Journal of 
Research Science and Management, ISSN: 2349- 5197. 

 

 Priyadharsan, S. and Nithiya, P. (2020). “Association 
between the Organizational Culture and Employees‟ 
Performance”. International Journal of Research & 
Innovation in Social Science, ISSN 2454-6186. 

 

 Arthika, R. (2020). “A Study on Perceived Ease of Use 
on Customers Adoption to use Mobile Banking Services”. 
International Research Journal of Advanced Engineering 
and Science (IRJAES), ISSN: 2455-9024. 

 

 Riyath, M. I. M. and Nishanthini, A. (2020). “The Impact 
of Social Media Network Sites on Academic Success of 
Students: Special Reference to Advanced Technological 
Institute, Sammanthurai”. International Journal of 
Scientific and Research Publications, ISSN: 2250-3153, 
DOI: doi.org/10.29322/IJSRP.10.08.2020.p10404 

 

 Joel Jairus, R. and Sivapriya, S. (2020). “South Indian 
Tamil Cinema’s Influence on Sri Lankan Tamil 

Filmmakers”. International Journal of English Literature 
and Social Sciences, DOI: 10.22161/ijels.56.66. 

 

 Raveender, A. (2020). “The Influence of Job 
Characteristics and Perceived Fairness toward 
Psychological Empowerment among Public Sector 
Employees in Sri Lanka”. European Journal of Business 
and Management, ISSN (Paper) 2222-1905, DOI: 
10.7176/EJBM/12-6-07. 

 

 Delima, V. J. (2020). “Impact of Working Capital 
Management on Firm’s Profitability: A Study on Listed 
Companies in Sri Lanka”. Asian Journal of Economics, 
Business and Accounting, 20(1), 42-58. 
//doi.org/10.9734/ajeba/2020/v20i130318 

 

 Jayasinghe, R. A. U. C. and Boyagoda, E. W. M. S 
(2020). “AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION FOR 
BACKPACKER TOURISM IN SRI LANKA (A Case study 
:Trincomalee District)”. International Journal of 
Multidisciplinary and Current Educational Research, 
ISSN: 2581-7027. 

 

 Veerasingam, E. B. (2020). “The Concept of 'Survival' in 
Diasporic Journeys: An Application of Maslow's 
Hierarchy of Needs on Jean Arasanayagam's "The 
Journey."”. International Journal of Scientific and 
Research Publications, Volume 10, Issue 11, November 
2020, ISSN 2250-3153. 

 

 Ankuran Dutta and  Jayawardhana, K. G. L. A. N. S. 
(2020). “Struggling to Breathe: the Thorny Road That Sri 
Lankan Community Radio Travelled Through”. Journal of 
Content, Community & Communication, ISSN: 2395-
7514 (Print), DOI: 10.31620/JCCC.12.20/27.

  

http://dx.doi.org/10.29322/IJSRP.10.08.2020.p10458
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PUBLISHED BOOKS AND BOOK CHAPTERS IN 2020 

The details of the books and book chapters published by the academics in the year 2020 are given below. 

BOOKS 

 Mahendranathan, C and Hasith Priyashantha, A. K. 
(2020). “Introducyion to Microbiology”. Publisher: Oxford 
Book Company, India, ISBN: 9789350306123. 
 

 Thavakumar, D. and Faizal Antanat Shamila (2020). 
“Psychological Contract Fulfillment and Organizational 
Commitment”. Publisher: LAP LAMBERT Academic 
Publishing. ISBN: 978-613-9-81578-4. 

 Santharooban, S. (2020). “Fundamentals of Library 
Classification (Ehyfg; gFg;ghf;f mbg;gilfs;)”. 
Publisher: Kumaran Book House, Colombo. 

 

 Navirathan, G. (2020) “Librarianship: an Introduction 
(Ehy MSik: XH mwpLfk;)”. Publisher: Thurka Press, 
Kokkuvil, Batticaloa. 

 

BOOK CHAPTERS 

 Sutha, J. (2020). “Non-Mandatory Training: A Concept 
Analysis in the Work, Environmental Context”. In book: 
Learning Styles and Strategies for Management 
Students. DOI: 10.4018/978-1-7998-2124-3.ch009. 

 

 Ganeshamoorthy Hariharan, Nishanthi 
Sivasubramaniam and Kandeeparoopan Prasannath, 
(2020). “RNA interference as a promising strategy for 
plant disease management”. In book: Food Security and 
Plant Disease Management, Publisher: Elsevier. 

 

 Danthanarayana, C. P., Kumara, P. H. T., Wijesundara, 
W. G. S. R. and Sutha, J. (2020). “The Effect of 
Knowledge Sharing Practices on Employees’ Knowledge 
and Capabilities in the Hotel Industry in Sri Lanka”. In: 
Coşkun İ., Othman N., Aslam M., Lew A. (eds) Travel and 
Tourism: Sustainability, Economics, and Management 
Issues. Springer, Singapore. ISBN 978-981-10-7068-6.  

 

 Mujahid, A. L. M. (2020). “Checking of Tongue in the 
Checking of Five Senses - A research based on 
principles of Hadees” Proceeding, International 
Conference on “Religious Literatures and Ethical 

concepts” Madurai Kamaraj University, Madurai, India, 
and ISBN: 978-93-86568-78-6. 

 

 Mujahid, A. L. M. (2020). “An Analysis of Evolution and 
Tradition of Appreciation of Arabic Poems”   Proceeding, 
the International Seminar on “Dimensions of 
Tamilography: From Keezhadi to Google” Madurai 
Kamaraj University College, Madurai, Tamil Nadu, India. 
ISBN: 978-81-944180-5-4. 

 

 Inparasa, I. (2020). "Social Positions in Avvaiyar’s 
Songs": An article published in Avvai, Avvaiyar Memorial 
special, published by Kathiravan Debate Council, 
Batticaloa, ISBN 978-624-5372-00-3, pp 26 – 34. 

 

 Nishanthini, S., Hariharan G. and Zakeel M.C.M. 
(2020). “Sustainable Management of Plant-Parasitic 
Nematodes: An Overview from Conventional Practices 
to Modern Techniques”. In: Ansari R., Rizvi R., 
Mahmood I. (eds) Management of Phytonematodes: 
Recent Advances and Future Challenges. Springer, 
Singapore. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-4087-
5_16. 

 

JOURNALS PUBLISHED IN 2020 

 AGRIEAST: Journal of Agricultural Sciences, Volume 14, Issue 01 and Issue 02, 2020, ISSN: 1391 - 5886. 

Presented by Faculty of Agriculture, EUSL. 
 

 MENTOR: The Journal of Business Studies, Volume 04, Issue 01 and Issue 02, 2020, ISSN: 1800 - 1548. 

Presented by Faculty of Commerce and Management, EUSL. 
 

 JSc: Journal of Science, Volume 11, Issue 01 and 02, 2020, ISSN: 1391-586X. Presented by Faculty of 

Science, EUSL.  

 

AWARDS RECEIVED 

Table 17: Awards received by the staffs and students in 2020.  

Main Centre, EUSL 

Subject No of Awards No of Academics No of Students 

a. Local awards - - - 

b. National Awards  01 - 01 

c. International Awards 01 01 - 

d. Other - - - 

Total 02 01 01 
  



 

Eastern University, Sri Lanka | 39 

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020 

 

ACADEMIC’S AWARDS AND ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2020 

 The most prestigious research award ceremony in Sri Lanka, the “President’s Awards for Scientific 

Research” was held on 6th April 2021 at the Auditorium of Sri Lanka Institute of Architects. Awards were 

given for the best 100 papers published in prestigious journals in the year 2018 where a significant 

contribution had been made by scientists working in Sri Lanka. The ceremony was held as an online event 

due to the pandemic situation.  

 

Prof. S. Thirukkanesh, Professor in Mathematics and Prof. F. C. Ragel, Professor of Physics from Faculty 

of Science won the “President’s Awards for Scientific Research” for their research article titled “Anisotropic 

generalization of well-known solutions describing relativistic self-gravitating fluid systems: an algorithm” 

published in the European Physical Journal C, 78, 31 (2018). https://doi.org/10.1140/epjc/s10052-018-

5526-5  

 

Professor Thirukkanesh has won the award seven times (2008, 2009, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 & 2018) 

which is the highest among the EUSL academics and Professor Ragel has won the award five times 

previously (2008, 2014, 2016, 2017 & 2018). 

 

 Dr. (Mrs.) J. Sutha, Department of Management, Faculty of Commerce and Management, received the 

Award of ‘Exceptional Women in Human Resource Development Discipline – 2020. The award was 

presented by The Global Learners Academy of Development, India.  

 

STUDENTS’ AWARDS AND ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2020 

 The national level basketball championship was held on 24th, 25th and 26th January 2020 in Batticaloa and 

Sri Lanka National Universities women team won the Champion in the 1st time of the history in the National 

level Basketball Tournament. The Physical Education unit, EUSL proudly announces that Ms. P. Shanuja, 

student of Faculty of Arts and Culture was received the best offensive player award of the Tournament by 

the Sri Lanka Basketball Federation. The names of the players from EUSL as follows : 

 Ms. P. Shanuja - Faculty of Arts and Culture.  

 Ms. J. Laxsahana -Faculty of Arts and Culture. 

 Ms. T. Vishnutha -Faculty of Arts and Culture. 

 

PROGRAMME, SEMINARS AND WORKSHOPS: 
Table 18: Details of the Program, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Career Guidance Unit (CGU) of 

EUSL are given below. 

No Title of the program Target Group 

01. Workshop on CV Writing and Cover Letter Preparation Common Programme for all students  

02. Tech Con 2020 – Microsoft Tech Tour 2020 Common Programme for all students  

03. Workshop on CV Writing and Cover Letter Preparation Common Programme for all students  

04. 
National Youth Dialogue on Leadership, Innovation and 
Entrepreneurship 

Five students from Faculties of Arts & Culture, 
Agriculture, Commerce & Management, Science, and 
Technology and two students (Faculty of Agriculture) 
as HackaDev Ambassador for 2020 of UNDP.  

05. 
"Awareness Programme on Legal Aspects of Ragging 
and Human 

01st year students  

06. Rights Violations among University Students " Final year second Semester students 

07. Workshop on CV Writing and Cover Letter Preparation Department of Education & Child Care 

08. Awareness Programme on Anti-Drugs Discipline of Economics Students " 

09. 
Seminar on Art of Living and Developing Effective 
Relationship 

2nd year 2nd semester Academic Year 2016/2017 

10. Motivational Session on Positive Self Esteem Common Programme for all students  

11. Seminar on Interview Skills Common Programme for all students  

https://doi.org/10.1140/epjc/s10052-018-5526-5
https://doi.org/10.1140/epjc/s10052-018-5526-5
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No Title of the program Target Group 

12. Seminar on How to Solve Problems in Life Common Programme for all students  

13. Perfect English - Online Short Course in English Common Programme for all students  

14. Stress Coping Strategies Common Programme for all students  

15. Self-realization: A Way of Harmony Common Programme for all students  

16. Personality Development Common Programme for all students  

17. Changing Behavior Common Programme for all students  

18. Women Rights and Security Common Programme for all students  

19. How to Manage Techno Stress in Mobile Learning Common Programme for all students  

20. Stress Coping Strategies Common Programme for all students  

21. Happiness is Your Choice Common Programme for all students  

22. Business Start-ups That Works Common Programme for all students  

23. Goal Setting Common Programme for all students  

24. Workshop on Leadership Development 
Fresher batch - academic year 2018/2019 Physical 
Science  

25. Workshop on Leadership Development Fresher batch - academic year 2018/2019 Bio Science  

26. Workshop on Leadership Development Fresher batch - academic year 2018/2020 

27. Soft Skills Workshop 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

28. Workshop on Leadership Development Fresher batch - academic year 2018/2020 

29. Emotional Intelligence 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

30. Cultural Diversity and Awareness 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

31. Healthy Hearts for University Students 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

32. Home Gardening and Techniques 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

33. Home Gardening and Techniques 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

34. "Graduation to Start -Up: 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

35. Becoming a Youthful Professional Entrepreneur ­" 
Common Programme for all students including 
Trincomalee Campus 

 

Table19: Details of the Program and Workshops conducted by Staff Development Centre (SDC) of EUSL 

are given below. 

No. Programme Target Group 

01. 
Induction Programme for Academic Administrative 
Staff 2019/2020 

Academic Administrative Staff 

02. Training Programme on Soft Skills All administrative & non – academic staff 

03. 
Induction Programme for Academic Administrative 
Staff 2019/2020 

Academic Administrative Staff 

04. Training on GIS & RS  All academic and interested staff 

05. Computer Maintenance and Network Troubleshooting  All academic and non-academic staff 

06. Artificial Intelligence and Maintaining Big Data  All Staff, EUSL 

07. 
Residential Workshop on Current Trends and Future 
Directions of EUSL for 2024-2028 

Council Members of EUSL, Chairman and Focal 
Points/ SPSU and other Administrative Heads 

08. E-Learning Material Development All academic and interested non-academic staff 

09. Institutional Review All academic Staff 

10. Financial Management Non- Academic and interested staff 

11. Workshop on MIS All academic and non-academic staff 

12. 
Effective Usage MS Office and Internet Usage (30 
hours programme) 

All non-academic staff 

13. Stress management  All academic and non-academic staff 
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No. Programme Target Group 

14. University Administrative Procedures Administrative and non-academic staff 

15. Quality Assurance in Governance and Management All academic and administrative staff 

16. Database Management Using MS Access All academic, administrative and non-academic staff 

17. E-Code and Important Circulars All academic, administrative and non-academic staff 

18. 
Induction Programme to the Newly Recruited Non-
Academic Staff Members 

All newly recruited non-academic staff members 

19. Preparation of Manuscript for Recognized Journal All academic staff 

20. Safety Precautions and Maintenance of Laboratories All laboratory Staff 

21. Proposal Writing for Grant All academic staff 

22. Computerized Inventory Management All clerical Staff 

23. 
Usage of Statistical Software (SAS, SPSS and R) & 
Modeling 

All academic and interested non-academic staff 

24. Procurement Procedures 
All academic, administrative, academic support and 
other staff 

25. 
Institutional Auditing in Universities (Academic, 
Financial, Performance etc.) 

All academic and non-academic staff 

26. Sinhala/Tamil language training Administrative Staff and Management Assistants 

27. Leadership Training Programme All non-academic staff 

28. Strategic Planning 
Members of SMC, Heads of departments and 
Directors of Centers / Units and administrative staff 

29. Disciplinary Procedures, Inquiry and Reporting Senior lecturers and administrative staff 

30. Student Counseling 
All senior student counselors, academic counselors, 
wardens, sub-wardens and interested staff 

31. Preparation of  meeting minutes Administrative and Management Assistant staff 

32. Learning Management System (LMS) All academic Staff 

33. Intellectual Property Rights All academic staff and Technical Officers of EUSL 

34. 
Induction Programme for Academic Staff Members 
2020/2021 

Probationary Academic Staff 

35. Training for the Security Officers All permanent security officers 

36. 5 S and Kaizen Management, 5 S as productivity tool Academic & non-academic staff 

37. Bid Evaluation & Technical Evaluation All academic, administrative & non – academic staff 
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FINANCIAL POSITIONS 

STATUS REPORT ON FUND RELEASED BY THE TREASURY AS OF 
31ST DECEMBER 2020 

Main Centre, EUSL 
Rs '000 

Particulars 
Amount  

Allocated 
Amount  

Recommended 
Amount  

Released 

Recurrent Grant 

Personal Emoluments 1,452,000 1,452,000 1,452,000 

Other Recurrent 167,000 167,000 167,000 

Total Recurrent Grant 1,619,000 1,619,000 1,619,000 

Capital Grant 

Rehabilitation & Improvement 52,000 52,000 52,000 

Acquisition of Assets 58,500 58,500 58,500 

Ongoing Construction Projects 61,500 61,500 61,500 

Construction of New Projects - - - 

Human Capital Development 
Projects 

5,000 5,000 5,000 

Strengthening Research 4,500 4,500 4,500 

Total Capital Grant 181,500 181,500 181,500 

Total Grant 1,800,500 1,800,500 1,800,500 
 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 
Rs '000 

Particulars 
Amount  

Allocated 
Amount  

Recommended 
Amount  

Released 

Recurrent Grant 

Personal Emoluments 254, 250 254, 250 254, 250 

Other Recurrent 76, 500 76, 500 76, 500 

Total Recurrent Grant 330, 750 330, 750 330, 750 

Capital Grant 

Rehabilitation & Improvement 12, 000 12, 000 12, 000 

Acquisition of Assets 39, 000 39, 000 39, 000 

Ongoing Construction Projects 171, 000 171, 000 171, 000 

Construction of New Projects - - - 

Human Capital Development 
Projects 

1, 000 1, 000 1, 000 

Strengthening Research 500 500 500 

Total Capital Grant 223, 500 223, 500 223, 500 

Total Grant 554, 250 554, 250 554, 250 
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DETAILS OF RECURRENT EXPENDITURE 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Subject 2019 Rs. 2020 Rs. 

a. Personal Emoluments 1,161,916,374 1,291,862,937 

b. Travelling Expenses 2,627,350 255,127 

c. Supplies 28,928,375 27,782,862 

d. Maintenance 
Expenditure 

24,086,027 20,431,096 

e. Contractual Services  175,868,712 154,195,937 

f. Others  45,300,327 34,673,911 

g. Depreciation & 
Amortization Expenses 

501,144,107 300,483,503 

Total 1,939,871,275 1,829,685,372 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Subject 2019 Rs. 2020 Rs. 

a. Personal Emoluments 226,420,442 263,458,266 

b. Travelling Expenses 294,650 130,119 

c. Supplies 10,424,372 7,551,720 

d. Maintenance Expenditure 8,063,498 7,664,141 

e. Contractual Services  55,419,222 46,462,076 

f. Others  9,681,000 8,681,167 

Total 310,303,184 333,947,489 

 

DETAILS OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Subject 2019 Rs. 2020 Rs. 

a. Rehabilitation Improvement 43,936,847 21,482,377 

b. Acquisition of Assets 52,717,057 106,555,026 

c. Contraction Projects 123,808,031 22,313,266 

d. Contraction Projects New - - 

e. Knowledge Enhancement 
& institutional Dev. 

6,240,713 1,692,924 

f. Research & Developments 3,094,203 548,503 

Total 229,796,851 152,592,096 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Subject 2019 Rs. 2020 Rs. 

a. Maintenance & 
Rehabilitation of Fixed 
Assets 

11,645,083  8,270,592  

b. Acquisition of Fixed Assets 21,044,806  15,258,107  

c. Contraction Projects 19,545  -  

d. Human Capital 
Development Projects 

1,160,494  -  

Total 33,869,928 23,528,699 

DETAILS OF PROJECTS (LOCAL/FOREIGN FUNDED) 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Name & Detail 
Loan/ 
Grant 

Funding Agency 
TCE 

(Rs.MN) 
RFA  

(Rs.MN) 
DF  

(Rs.MN) 

1. Design and Construction of Building Complex 
for the Faculty of Agriculture at the EUSL 

Grant Government of Sri Lanka 302.7 - - 

2. Construction of Building  for Bio System 
Technology, Eastern University, Sri Lanka 

Grant Government of Sri Lanka 239.5 - - 

3. Construction of Building Complex for English 
Language Teaching Unit, EUSL 

Grant Government of Sri Lanka 238.7 - - 

4. Building Complex for the Faculty of Health Care 
Sciences, Eastern University, Sri Lanka Project. 

Loan Kuwait 6,617.5 - - 

Total 7,398.4 - - 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL  

Name & Detail 
Loan/ 
Grant 

Funding Agency 
TCE 

(Rs.MN) 
RFA  

(Rs.MN) 
DF  

(Rs.MN) 

Contract 
Amount 
(Rs.MN) 

1. Construction of building for the faculty of 
communication and business studies 

Grant Government of Sri Lanka 821.40 - - 701.18 

2. Building for Multipurpose Auditorium  Grant Government of Sri Lanka 784.80  - - 674.47 

3. 2.5km Asphalt surface road network. Grant Government of Sri Lanka 145.00  - - 145.00 

4. Construction of Staff Quarters Grant Government of Sri Lanka 40.00  - - 32.40 

Total 1,791.20 - - 1,553.05 
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DETAILS OF PROJECT EXPENDITURE (LOCAL/ FOREIGN FUNDED) 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Name 
TCE 

(Rs.MN) 
Exp in 2019  

(Rs. MN) 
Exp in 2020 
 (Rs. MN) 

Cumulative Exp 
as at 31.12.2020 

(Rs. MN) %
 o

f 

P
h

y
s
i

c
a

l 

P
ro

g
r

e
s
s
 

1. Design and Construction of Building Complex for 
the Faculty of Agriculture at the EUSL 

302.7 128.3 192.48  320.78 100% 

2. Construction of Building  for Bio System 
Technology, Eastern University, Sri Lanka 

239.5 101.9 137.1 239.00 100% 

3. Construction of Building Complex for English 
Language Teaching Unit, EUSL 

238.7 89.8 122.78 212.58 100% 

4. Building Complex for the Faculty of Health Care 
Sciences, Eastern University, Sri Lanka Project. 

6,617.5 Handling by Ministry of Higher Education 

Total 7398.4 320 452.36 772  

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Name 
TCE 

(Rs.MN) 
Exp in 2019  

(Rs. MN) 

Exp in 
2020 

 (Rs. MN) 

Cumulative Exp 
as at 31.12.2020 

(Rs. MN) 

% of 
Physical 
Progress 

1. 103 - Construction of Staff Quarters Phase - 1 40.00 23.87 7.50 31.37 100 % 

2. 103 - Construction of FCBS Building 821.40 264.50 158.49 422.99 50 % 

3. 103 - Construction of Multi. Auditorium 784.80 25.00 15.00 40.00 5 % 

Total 1,646.20 313.37 180.99 494.36  
 

 

 

 

 

 

DETAILS OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS (EXPENDITURE) 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Subject 

Allocation 
in 2020 
(Mn.) 

Grant 
received 

from DTO 

Expenditur
e in 2020 

(Mn.) 

Saving/ 
Excess 
(Mn.) 

a. Recurrent Except 
Project 1,619.0 1,619.0 1,829.68 (210.68) 

b. Capital Except 
Project 181.5 181.5 152.59 28.91 

Total 1800.5 1800.5 1,982.27 (181.77) 

 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Subject 
Provision 
in 2020 
(Mn.) 

Exp in 
2020 
(Mn.) 

Savings / 
Excess 
(Mn.) 

1. Recurrent 
Except Project 

336.00 333.95 2.05 

2. Capital Except 
Project 

52.00 23.53 28.47 

3. Project - Local 
Funded 

171.00 180.99 (9.99) 

Total 559.00 538.47 20.53 
 

DETAILS OF FINANCIAL PROGRESS (GENERATED INCOME) 

Internal Revenue Only 

Main Centre, EUSL 
Source of 
Revenue 

Provision in 
2020 (Rs.) 

Collection in 
2020 (Rs.) 

Deficit / 
Surplus (Rs.) 

a. Undergraduate 
& Postgraduate 
Studies 

- 3,599,052 3,599,052 

b. Other Income 20,000,000 35,166,775 15,166,775 

Total 20,000,000 38,765,827 18,765,827 

 

Trincomalee Campus 

Source of 
Revenue 

Provision in 
2020 (Rs.) 

Collection in 
2020 (Rs.) 

Deficit / 

Surplus (Rs) 

a. Undergraduate 
Studies 

3,030,000 2,906,035 (123,965) 

b. Other Income 2,220,000 2,596,082 376,082 

Total 5,250,000 5,502,117 252,117 
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS - 2020 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Subject Formula 
Exp. Per 

Student (Rs.) 

Recurrent Expenditure 
per Student (RE) 

RE / No of 
Student strength 

323,266 

Capital Expenditure per 
Student (CE) 

CE / No of 
Student strength 

26,960 

Total 350,226 

Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Subject Formula 
Exp. Per 

Student (Rs.) 

Recurrent Expenditure 
per Student (RE) 

RE / No of 
Student strength 

200,449 

Capital Expenditure per 
Student (CE) 

CE / No of 
Student strength 

14,123 

Total 214,572 

 

DETAILS OF INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES RECEIVED IN 2020 

Main Centre, EUSL 

Infrastructure Details 
Expenditure 
(Rs. MN.) 

Physical 
Progress 

1. Supply, Installation Commissioning and Maintenance of Extension of 
Campus Area Network at Faculty of Agriculture, and Faculty Technology 10.07 80% 

2. Construction of Septic Tank and Soakage pits at Hostel and Other places 
at EUSL, Vantharumoolai, Palachcholai & Batticaloa  3.25 70% 

3. Extension of GYM as Fitness Room at EUSL 
2.43 60% 

4. Supply and Fixing of Aluminum Partition at Faculty of Agriculture 0.99 90% 

5. Construction of Livestock Shed 
10.68 1% 

6. Supply, installation, commissioning, and extension of Fiber Backbone 
between Server Room / CICT and Faculty of Agriculture and Faculty of 
Technology 

6.48 5% 

Total 33.91  

 
 

 Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

Infrastructure Details 
Estimated Cost 

(Rs. MN.) 
Expenditure 
(Rs. MN.) Physical Progress 

1. Extension of 450 m Parapet wall  5.60 5.22 
Work completed on 
12.03.2020 

2. Establishment of Barbered wire Fence at 
Trincomalee Campus, EUSL 

1.96 1.83 
Work completed on 
28.02.2020 

Total 7.56 7.05  
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December 2020 

1. Corporate Information 
 

1.1. Domicile and Legal Form 

The Eastern University, Sri Lanka is a statutory body incorporated under the Universities Act No: 16 of 1978 
from 1st of October 1986 and it is located at Vantharumoolai, Batticaloa. The University was preceded by the 
Batticaloa University College established on 1st of August 1981. 

 
1.2. Principal Activities and Nature of Operations 

The principal activities of the Eastern University, Sri Lanka are promotion of higher learning and research 
activities in keeping with National Policy by providing higher learning facilities to the students. 

 
1.3. Trincomalee Campus 

The Trincomalee Affiliated University College (AUC) which was established in April 1993 under Ordinance No: 
1 of 1993 by the Universities Act No: 16 of 1978 was amalgamated with the Eastern University with effect from 
15.06.2001 by Gazette Notification dated 06.06.2001. The Financial Management of the Trincomalee Campus 
is under the purview of the Eastern University. The Trincomalee Campus is obtained release of fund for 
Recurrent and Capital Expenditure directly from the General Treasury. The financial transactions of the 
Trincomalee Campus are incorporated into the accounts of the Eastern University, Sri Lanka. 
 

1.4. Consolidated Financial Statements  

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Eastern University, Sri Lanka, as at and for the year ended 31st 
December 2020 encompass the Main University and the Trincomalee Campus.    
 

1.5. Date of authorization for issue 

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue to the Auditor General Department by the 
Council at its 314th meeting held on 27th March 2021. 
 

1.6. Financial Period   

The financial period of the University represents twelve months period from 1st January 2020 to 31st December 
2020. 

 

2. Summary of Significant accounting policies 
 

2.1. General accounting policies  

The Financial statements of the University have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector 
Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) promulgate by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. 
Whereas there is no standard stipulated in the SLPSAS, The Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS/SLFRSs) 
and International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) had been followed. The Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31st December 2020 are presented in the formats that were introduced by the Department 
of Public Enterprises by Circular No: PED/19 of 19th December 2003 and adopted by the University Grants 
Commission by the Finance Circular No: 2/2004 of 23rd January 2004 with suitable modifications where 
necessary. 
 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented in the financial statements unless otherwise 
stated. 
 

2.2. Basis of preparation of Financial Statements Statements of Compliance 

These financial statements comprise the Statements of Financial Position, Statement of Financial 
Performance, Statement of Changes of Equity and Net Assets, Statement of Cash flows and Notes to the 
Financial Statements. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public 
Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS). 

 
2.2.1. Basis of Measurement  

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis.   
 

2.2.2. Comparative Information 

Comparative information including quantitative, narrative and descriptive information is disclosed in 
respect of the previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements in order to enhance 
the understanding of the financial statements of the current period and to improve comparability. 
Where necessary, comparative figures have been re-arranged to conform to the current year’s 
presentation. 

 

2.2.3. Functional and presentation currency 

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (Rs), functional and presentation currency 
of the University, which is the primary economic environment in which the University operates. 
All financial information presented in Sri Lankan Rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee, unless 
stated otherwise.   
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2.2.4. Translation of foreign currency transaction  

Transactions in currencies other than Sri Lanka Rupees are converted into Sri Lanka Rupees at rates 
which approximate the actual rates at the transaction date. At the reporting date, monetary assets 
(including securities) and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are converted into Sri Lanka Rupees 
at the rate of exchange at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies that are 
stated at historical cost are translated at the foreign exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 
Realized and unrealized exchange differences are reported in the statement of financial performance. 

 
2.2.5. Materiality and Aggregation  

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of a 
dissimilar nature or function or are presented separately unless they are immaterial. 

 
2.3. Assets and the bases of their valuation  

 
2.3.1. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

 
a. Recognition and measurement 

All Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any impairment losses.  
Significant components of an asset are identified and depreciated separately. When significant parts 
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity derecognizes the 
replaced part and recognizes the new part with its own associated useful life and depreciation. 
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance as 
incurred. 

 
b. Cost 

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable 
cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of 
replacing part of the property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition 
criteria are met.  
 

c. Additions 

The cost of an item of Property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that 
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the University and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. In most instances, an item of Property, plant and 
equipment is recognized at its cost. When an asset is donated, it is recognized at fair value as at the 
date of acquisition.   
 

d. Disposals 

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount 
of the assets, and are included in the Statement of Financial Performance. 
 

e. Subsequent costs 

Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalized only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the University and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably.  
Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment that is 
accounted for separately, including major inspection and overhaul expenditure, is capitalized. Other 
subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits or service 
potential embodied within the part will flow to the University and its cost can be measured reliably. 
 

f. Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a straight –line basis on all property, plant and equipment other than 
land, at rate that will write off the cost of the asset over their useful lives.  
Depreciation is provided at the following rates on their cost as per the UGC Circular No: 649 of 5 th 
October 1995. 
 

Buildings   5% 
Office Furniture   10% 
Plant and Machinery  10% 
Office Equipment  20% 
Books and Periodicals  20% 
Vehicles   20% 
Cloaks    20% 
Telephone   20% 
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According to the Accounting Policies of the University, Depreciation of an asset begins when it is 
available for use. i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation of an asset ceases when the asset 
is derecognized”. 
 

g. De recognition 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the asset 
calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount and 
included in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year when the asset are derecognized. 

 
2.3.2. Work in Progress   

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, less any impairment losses. These are expenses of a capital 
nature directly incurred in the construction of property, plant and equipment awaiting capitalization. 
Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant asset category in property plant and 
equipment, when it is available for use. i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended by the university. 

 
2.3.3. Intangible Assets 

 
a. Recognition and measurement 

An intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 
assets will flow to the Institute and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following the initial 
recognition, where the cost model is applied, assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. 
 

b. Amortization 

Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis on all intangible assets of finite life, at rates that will 
write off the cost or value of the assets over their useful lives. 
 
Intangible assets are amortized on the following bases: 

 Fixed Assets Register software is amortized over a period of five (05) years on straight line 
method. 

 Computer software and other intangible assets are amortized over a period of five (05) years on 
the straight line method.  

 
c. De recognition 

Gains and losses arising from de recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the 
Statement of Financial Performance when the assets are derecognized. 

 
2.3.4. Inventories 

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through 
non-exchange transactions, the cost of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition. 
After initial recognition, inventories are measured at cost based on the First in First out (FIFO) basis and 
the value of the stock held by the Academic/ Administrative departments has been excluded from the 
expenditure.  
 

2.3.5. Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at bank, deposits on call and highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible to known 
amount of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.    
Bank overdraft is included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 
statement of cash flows, which has been prepared using the ‘indirect method’. 

 

2.4. Liabilities and Provisions 

 
2.4.1. Liabilities 

Liabilities classified as current liabilities on the statement of financial position are those which fall due 
for payment on demand or within one year from the reporting date. Non-current liabilities are those 
balances that fall due for payment after one year from the reporting date. All known liabilities have been 
accounted for in preparing these financial statements. 

  
2.4.2. Provisions 

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the University has a legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets will be required 
to settle the obligation and the obligation can be measured reliably. Provisions are not made for future 
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operating losses. For certain operational claims reported as provisions, it is not practical to disclose 
detailed information on their corresponding nature and uncertainties. 

 
a. Employee benefits 

 
i. Provision for Gratuity 

Provision for Gratuity is made in terms of Payment of Gratuity Act No: 12 of 1983 for all eligible 
employees. The provision for grant is not represented by the investment since the Treasury does not 
provide financial allocation to make investment externally. 
Defined benefit plans estimate the amount of benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, 
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation. 
 

ii. Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution 
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay a further amount. 
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense in the 
Statement of Financial Performance as and when they are due. 
 

 University Provident Fund (UPF) 

University employees are required to contribute 10% of their monthly salary to the Universities 
Provident Fund, the University in turn contributes a sum equivalent to 08% to the Universities 
Pension Fund, 07% to the University Provident Fund (UPF). 

 

 Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) 

The University contributes 3% on the salary of each employee to the Employees ’Trust Fund. 
 

2.4.3. Contingent Liabilities 

The university does not recognized a contingent liability, but disclosed details of any contingencies in 
the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential is remote. 

 
2.4.4. Contingent Assets 

The university does not recognized a contingent asset, but disclosed details of possible asset whose 
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future event not 
wholly within the control of the university in the notes to the financial statements 

 
2.5. Accounting for the receipt and utilization of funds, grants and reserves 

 
2.5.1. Restricted Fund 

Where grants/donations are received for use in an identified project or activity, such funds are held in a 
restricted fund accounts. Unutilized funds are held in their respective fund accounts and included under 
accumulated fund and reserves in the statement of financial position until such time as they are required. 
The University has accounted the following funds and grants as restricted funds. 

 
a. Research Grant 

 
EUSL Main Centre 

 Research Grant General 

 Research Grant -Probationary & Senior Academic-Grades to Obtain Doctoral Qualifications 
Locally 

 Computer Development Fund 

 National Centre for Advanced Studies – 
Research Grant 

 Railway Extension Project 

 CARP Research Project 

 Interest from Swami Vipulananda Memorial Lecture Fund Investments 

 Interest from Endowment Fund Investments 

 Interest from Short-term Investment 

 Endowment Fund Account 

 Vice Chancellor's Fund 

 Swami Vipulananda Memorial Lecture Fund 

 Endowed Scholarship Downers Component 
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b. Self-Financing Programmes 
 
EUSL Main Centre 

 External Studies - BA 

 External Studies - BBA 

 External Studies – B.Econ 

 External Studies - BSc Agriculture 

 External Studies - BSc Science 

 External Studies - BSc Nursing 

 Master Degrees Programmes - Arts & Culture ( MA, M.Phil., MED ) 

 Postgraduate Studies Commerce & Management -MDE 

 Postgraduate Studies Commerce & Management - MBA 

 Postgraduate Studies Commerce & Management - PGDM 

 Extramural Studies - Arts & Culture, Disaster Management 

 Extramural Studies - Arts & Culture, English for Communication 

 Extramural Studies - Arts & Culture, Journalism 

 Extramural Studies - Arts & Culture, Office Management 

 Extramural Studies - Arts & Culture, Psychology & Personality Development. 

 Extramural Studies - Arts & Culture, Counselling 

 Centre for Social Research Development Certificate Course in - Psychosocial ( CSRD ) 

 E L T U 

 CENSARM 

 Diploma in Sustainable Agriculture 

 CEFE 
 
Trincomalee Campus 

 Restricted Fund 

 

2.5.2. Other Grants 
 

EUSL Main Centre 

 Student Welfare Fund 

 Grant from UGC to Staff Development Centre 

 Grant from UGC for Establishment of Reservation and Conservation Unit in Library 

 Grant from UGC Entrepreneurship Development & the Foundation of Cottage Industries 
(Entrepreneurship Skills  Development ) 

 WUSC Grant - Canada 

 Students Fund 

 Tsunami Scholarship Award - 2012 

 Rehabilitation Grant 

 Cultural Grant - Norwagic 

 CENSARM 

 RNE Grant - Upgrading Junior Ac. Staff for Agriculture 

 BIRRP - Grant, Evaluating -Poultry Milk Production 

 Nursing 

 Reproductive Health Education Programme - (ARH Programme) 

 Extramural Studies 

 MOT/ADB Financial Management T/P 

 UNFPA Project- Training course in peer -education and communication for -Student leaders 

 National Science Foundation Sri Lanka 

 INFITT. International Forum Tamil 

 Tamil Nadu Agricultural University 

 Tamil Student Association, Canada 

 Early Childhood Development and -Pre - School Education 

 GELT 

 Sri Lanka -German CEFE Programme 

 Indian- Sri Lanka Foundation 

 Study on Reproductive Health Education and wariness among- University Student in the 
Eastern Province 

 Workshop and Seminar on Internet- and Email - 2003 

 Pilot Fingerling Hatchery - CARM -(UNDP Project) 

 British Council UK.SL. Link Programme 

 Zonal Plan Shrimp Farming 

 Reproductive Health & Counselling - UNFPA Project. 

 Wildlife Research Grant 

 DARAM 

 Tsunami Housing Reconstruction 

 Asian Foundation Grant 
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 Australian & Swiss Red Cross 

 CIDA Project 

 Science & Technology Personal- Development Project  (ADB) 

 Disbursement of Funds to Establish/ Develop University Industry Community Interaction 
Cells 

 Peace & Social Harmony Project 

 Short Term Training Programme in - IT for School Teachers 

 IRQUE 

 IRQUE/QUF Batch 3 Faculty of Arts & Culture Programme Expen. 

 Tsunami  Fund 

 NTNU link Project ( NUFU Fund) 

 NUFU Link Project, NUFU Fund  -(  Overhead Charges 10% ) 

 U S A Aid  Fund Project 

 International  Peace Council 

 Noma Scholarship Programme 

 MED 

 IFS 

 Central Environmental Authority 

 Practical Demonstration for A/L Students 

 IT Certificate Course for Education -Department Staff 

 Master of Philosophy Pro.- ( Tamil, Geography & Drama ) 

 L 3 Project ( Commonwealth of Lear ) 

 World VISION Funded ( RIWAS ) - Project for Water Testing 

 Public Officer's Degree Programme in - Administration 

 Certificate Course for Daily Technology-  by Animal Science 

 Master of Arts 

 WHO Fund for Dev. Of Human Resource - Health in the Post Conflict Areas Graduate- 
Training for FHCS Medical & Nursing Students 

 Training for Probationary Staff Introduction Programme 2011/2012  
( by Staff Development) 

 Staff Welfare Fund 

 Endowed Scholarship from UGC 

 Other Grant 

 Organic Farming Project 

 Households Baseline Survey Project, - POA/ EUSL 

 WHO Project -DTHR Project - FHCS 

 WHO Project -DFC Project - FHCS 

 Study on Selecting Geographical & Administrative Locations for Plan Programme 

 CARP - NARS Project Programme 

 WASH Endline Survey Project - Malteser International. 

 Development of Culture Based Fisheries - Eastern Province by EUSL & WUSL Funded by 
University of Calgary, Canada 

 Conflict Pace and Development - Noma Project 

 Land O' Development Sri Lanka DEEP 
Project by  Faculty of Agriculture 

 Tamil Engineers Foundation Students Scholarship 

 Centre for Aquatic Resources Management & Related Studies 

 CARP - Improvement of Hot Pepper Cultivars Through Genetic Manipulation 

 Land Use Policy Planning Department – 
Fund for GIS Training Programme 
 

Trincomalee Campus 

 High Commission of India 

 Grant for Vehicles 

 IT Grant for UGC 

 Ministry of Higher Education 

 
  



 

66 | Eastern University, Sri Lanka 

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020 

 

2.6. Statement of Financial Performance 
 
2.6.1. Recurrent Grant  

Recurrent Grant comprises of the grant received from the government for the recurrent expenditure.  
 

2.6.2. Net income / loss from other Activities 

Net income/ loss from other activities are recognized from the various courses and programmes 
conducted by the university. Income and Expenditure of self-financing courses conducted for 
Undergraduate Degree Programmes and Postgraduate Degree Programmes have been prepared on 
cash basis. The net income from these activities has been shown in the statement of Financial 
Performance and subsequently adjustments have been made to the General Reserve and net 
income/deficit had been added to the opening balance of the respective accounts and shown under 
current liability as restricted fund. Income /loss from following courses and programmes has been 
accounted by the university. 

 
a. External Studies Programmes 
b. Postgraduate Studies – Commerce & Management  
c. Master Degree Programme - Arts & Culture 
d. Extramural Studies - Arts & Culture 
e. Master Degree Programme – Science 
f. Diploma - Agriculture   
g. Income from External Studies - Trincomalee Campus  

 
2.6.3. Accounting for Students Fees 

The students registration fees, tuition fees and medical fees are accounted on cash basis and other 
incomes are on receivable basis and this is the practice being adopted by the University from the 
inception. 

 
2.6.4. Expenditure recognition 

Expenses in carrying out the projects and other activities of the University are recognized in the 
Statement of Financial Performance during the period in which they are incurred. Other expenses 
incurred in administering and running the University and in restoring and maintaining the property plant 
and equipment to perform at expected levels are accounted for on an accrual basis and charged to the 
Statement of Financial Performance. 

 
2.6.5. Finance Expenses 

Finance expense is recognized on accrual basis when it is paid or creates liabilities. 
 

2.7. Statement of cash flows  

The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with SLPSAS 02. The statement of cash flows 
has been prepared using the “Indirect Method”. 
Capital Grant received is classified under financial cash flows. 

 
2.8. Events after the reporting period   

The materiality of events occurring after the reporting period has been considered and appropriate 
adjustments, wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts. 
 

2.9. Other Discloses  
 

2.9.1. Grant for Bursary and Mahapola 

The Grant for Bursary is shown as an income under Recurrent Grant and the payment of Bursary is 
shown as an Expenditure of the welfare services under 4.3.7.1705 as directed by the University Grants 
Commission by its Letter No: UGC/F/BUR/87 dated 14.10.1987 and classified as a separate item as 
Financial Assistance to students in the Statements of Financial Performance. 

 
2.9.2. Higher Education for Twentieth Century (HETC) Project 

The University was implementing HETC Project funded by the World Bank through PPDU. A separate 
bank account was maintained and statement of accounts was rendered to the PPDU periodically.  
Assets that were purchased under this project were treated as the property of the University and 
accounted after the completion of the project. 
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Five Year Key Statistics 
 

 
CATEGORY 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

% 
CHANGE 
2016-2020 

%  
CHANGE 
2019-2020 

Number of Students 
  
  
  
  
  
  

Total 4192 4659 5299 6186 7326 42.8% 15.6% 

Agriculture 271 299 275 250 262 -3.4% 4.6% 

Arts and Culture 1462 1812 2305 2828 3149 53.6% 10.2% 

Commerce and 
Management 

665 682 681 682 730 8.9% 6.6% 

Health-care Sciences 425 427 511 522 686 38.0% 23.9% 

Science 482 543 481 510 544 11.4% 6.3% 

Technology - 86 144 221 289 - 23.5% 

Applied Sciences 65 126 217 320 465 86.0% 31.2% 

Unit of Siddha 
Medicine  

154 139 181 216 278 44.6% 22.3% 

Communication and 
Business Studies 

497 545 504 637 923 46.2% 31.0% 

Number of Staffs 

  

  

  

  

Total 627 699 729 676 718 12.7% 5.8% 

Academic 221 230 244 205 262 15.6% 21.8% 

Academic Support 16 19 24 26 26 38.5% 0.0% 

Administrative 28 30 39 41 39 28.2% -5.1% 

Non-Academic 362 420 422 404 391 7.4% -3.3% 

Teaching Staffs 

  

  

  

  

  

Total 187 223 237 246 255 26.7% 3.5% 

Senior Professor - - 2 3 2 - -50.0% 

Professor 8 9 8 7 10 20.0% 30.0% 

Associate Professor - - - - 1 - - 

Senior Lecturer Gr I 41 57 61 69 78 47.4% 11.5% 

Senior Lecturer Gr II 71 71 85 80 78 9.0% -2.6% 

Lecturer 67 86 81 87 86 22.1% -1.2% 

Undergraduates 

  

  

Total 5258 5146 5711 6652 8083 34.9% 17.7% 

Internal 4192 4659 5299 6176 7326 42.8% 15.7% 

External 1066 487 412 476 757 -40.8% 37.1% 

Postgraduates Total 164 192 186 227 266 38.3% 14.7% 

Publications 

  

Web of Science 9 15 15 24 73 87.7% 67.1% 

books/ book chapters 5 22 30 18 12 58.3% -50.0% 

Awards President's Award 4 4 2 3 - - - 

Signed MOU Total 5 2 1 1 - - - 
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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN, AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR 2020 

The Audit Committee is one of the Sub Committees of the Council of Eastern University, Sri Lanka. The five-
member Committee meets regularly in every year and discusses the University’s financial, human and 
administrative, aspects. Audit Committee’s membership, terms of office, responsibilities, powers and 
electoral  procedures are governed by the Treasury of Sri Lanka through University Grants Commission and 
Council of the Eastern University, Sri Lanka. 
 
1. TERM OF REFERENCE FOR THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

i. Determination of the responsibilities of the Internal Audit Division and review of the annual audit 
plans. 

ii. Review and evaluate internal control systems for all activities of the University. 

iii. Preview and recommend the annual Internal Audit Plan and the work programme prepared by the 
Internal Auditor. 

iv. Review performance at regular intervals for cost effectiveness and to eliminate wasteful 
expenditure etc. 

v. Liaise with external auditors and follow up on Auditor General’s/ external auditors Management 
Letters. 

vi. Ascertain whether statutes, regulations, rules and circulars are complied with. 

vii. Review financial statements to ensure compliance with Accounting Standards. 

viii. Review internal audit/external audit reports, Management Letters for remedial action. 

ix. Review implementation of recommendations/directives of the Committee on Public Enterprises. 

x. Prepare report on the findings of the Committee for inclusion in the Annual Report. 

 
2. COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The term of Audit Committee for the period of 2019 was over with effect from December 2019 due to 
Presidential Election. The following new members were appointed by the Council at its 304th meeting 
held on 22.02.2020 to serve the period; 

 
Name of the Member      Designation  

(a) Appointed Members from the Council 

1.  Mr P Premnath  (Chairman)    Attorney at Law 

2.  Dr G Sukunan (Member)     Regional Director of Health Services, 
Kalmunai. 

3.  Ms S J M S Samarakoon    Dean, 
Mahaweli National College of Education 

(b) Ex-Officio Members 

4.  Mr A Pahirathan     Registrar, EUSL  
5.  Mr S Thiruvarudchelvan    Senior Asst. Internal Auditor 

 
(c) Observers 

6.  Mr K.Raveendran      Acting Superintendent of Audit,  
National Audit Office, Batticaloa. 

7.  Mr M M J R Bogamuwa    Internal Auditor, UGC 
 
(d) Invitee  

8.  Mr M M Fareez      Bursar, EUSL 
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3. MEETINGS  

During the year under review, the Committee able to meet only three times due to the COVID 19 
pandemic situation prevailed in the country. The recommendations of the committee were made 
available to the Council of the University for its Approval and necessary action. Details of the meetings 
are given below; 

  
Meeting No.  Date of Meeting 
1. 65th    31.07.2020 
2. 66th    31.10.2020 
3. 67th    18.12.2020 

 
4. ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR 2019:  
 

The Committee carried out the following activities during the year. 
 
a. Internal Audit: 

 Recommending & Monitoring the Internal Audit Plan and Programme 
 

As per the previous experience, the Committee recommended to more concerning of some 
checking areas in the audit plans follows; 

o Governance and Management 
o Assets Utilization 
o Delay in Examination result 
o Breach of Bonds and Agreements. 
o Maintenance of vehicle repairs 
o Annual verification and fixed assets  
o Maintenance of Personal Files  

 
Further, the Committee monitored its status throughout the year as well. 

 
 Reviewing and monitoring the Internal Audit functions 

 
The Committee reviewed the Internal Auditor’s Reports, Reference Notes and Queries and 
made necessary directions and recommendations for the administration to rectify the lapses 
pointed out therein. 

 
b. Annual Report and Annual accounts: 

The Committee monitored the progress on the preparation of annual report for the year under 
review and ensured the timely submission. Further followed up the preparation and presentation of 
Annual Statements of Accounts of the University. 

 
 

c. External Audit: 

The Committee reviewed the audit queries and annual report submitted by the Auditor General on 
the compliance with applicable laws and regulations for the year under review. 

 
d. Review and Monitoring the Internal Control System: 
 

o Annual Verification & Fixed Assets Register 
The Committee continuously reviewed and monitored the progress of timely completing the 
Annual Board of Survey of the University.  
 

o Recovery of Unsettled advances & Loans 
Committee had a serious concern about the recovery process on loan and advances and 
closely monitored the settlement process during the year under review.  
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o Internal Control lapses at Library, Trincomalee Campus 
The Committee had a serious concern about library management system at the Trincomalee 
Campus and recommended to Council to go for a disciplinary action against the relevant 
officer/s.  
 

o Lapses of maintaining personal files 
The Committee noted thathad a serious concern about the maintenance of personal files by 
the establishment divisions that there were lapses observed and advised the relevant officers 
to pay more attention in this regard. Further the committee recommended to conduct training 
programs to the employees through SDC. 
 

o Stock Verification at Main Stores 
The committee noted that the internal control system at the main stores at EUSL is very poor 
and there were lot of operational lapses observed. The Committee recommended to appoint 
a committee to solve and rectify the discrepancies at the stores. 

  
e. Corporate Plan and Master Plan 
 

Corporate Plan 
Committee continuously reviewed and monitored the progress of preparing the Corporate Plan as 
per the standard stipulated in the Public Enterprises Guidelines of Good Governance.  

   
f. Land Ownership: 

 
Master Plan 
Committee observed that most of the land belongs to the EUSL had not title deeds or ownership 
so far. The Committee further noted that the Consultant was appointed again to deal this matter 
and request the administration to clearly define the task and a time frame for the consultancy work 
and complete the work within that. 

 
g. Breach of Bond and Agreement 

 
The Committee continuously reviewed and monitored the Bond recovery review committee. 
Further, a legal officer was appointed to handle this matter. as a result positive responses were 
received from some bond violators. Legal action had also already been initiated to send the letter 
of demand to the sureties.  

 
h. Budgetary Control 

 
The Committee seriously observed and monitored the Actual performance against budgetary 
provisions to ensure proper financial control and its disbursements. 

 
 
5. CONCLUSION: 
 

The Audit Committee satisfied with the active participation of the Committee members and their 
commitment towards the good governance of the University. The Committee satisfied with the Senior 
Assistant Internal Auditor functions as the Secretary to the committee in fulfilling his role. The Committee 
while satisfied with the follow up action taken and the progress achieved regarding the recommendations 
given by the Committee, continue to emphasize the implementation of good governance, transparency, 
proper financial, administrative and academic performance.  

 
 
 

Chairman, 
Audit Committee, 
Eastern University, Sri Lanka. 
18.03.2021 
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMMES IMPLEMENTED BY THE EASTERN 
UNIVERSITY SRI LANKA  

Eastern University, Sri Lanka has implemented the following Sustainable Development activities 

on environment and disaster impact assessment analysis to safeguard the environment and 

mitigate any negative impact on environment: 

1. Ensure access to affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy for all: 
Solar Net metering system had been installed in the Senate Block (will cover the cost in six 
years). It Generates power since July 2018 (total generated units 212,000), which is 50% of 
the building’s consumption and 10% of the total consumption.  

  
Planning to install the Solar net system for Centre for Information and Communication 
Technology (CICT) and Students Hostel, covering more than 50% of the total consumption. 

 
2. Introduction and Implementation of a waste management system: 

The waste could be sorted as Plastic, Polythene, Organic waste, Paper, Glasses and E-
waste and could be collected in separated containers. First, this will be introduced to the 
Hostels and then to the other offices. 

 
3. Ensure the disposal of chemical and clinical wastes in an environmentally friendly manner: 

Hazardous chemicals and clinical wastes are generated mainly by the Faculty of Science and 
the Faclty of Health-Care Sciences. Healthy environmental ways are being discussed to 
dispose of those wastes. 

4. Explore the methods for Recycling Garbage at the University Premises: 
The garbage could be recycled at the University premises as there is enough space. The Bio-
waste could be incinerated / Sterilized and used as fertilizers for the farm. The other organic 
waste, such as papers, foods etc., could undergo anaerobic digestion, and the produced  
Biogas could use as an energy source. 

 
The Faculty of Agriculture, Faculty Science and Technology, could monitor this with their 
expertise, and the cooperation and support will be anticipated from the Municipal Council, 
Batticaloa. 

 
5. Implement the measurements to reduce e-waste generated at the University: 

Annually a considerable amount of discarded e-waste has been recognized from the 
University. The measurements that could be implemented to reduce those waste are in 
discussion level. 

 
6. Introduction of the Clean and Green concept for the University: 

Measurements have been implemented to maintain and improve the cleanliness in the 
University surroundings and inside the Buildings, mainly in the Hostels. Also, it’s been 
discussed to establish a system to maintain the greenness continuously in the University 
premises. 

 
7. Installation of Fire Extinguishers in Hostels and other necessary places: 

Presently, the fire extinguishers had been installed in the Senate Building, Library and 
Faculties. It was decided to install Fire extinguishers in Hostels to prevent the damages due 
to fire. 

 
8. Ensure efficient consumption of energy by using LED lighting system: 

LED is a high energy–efficient / energy-saving lighting Technology, and it lasts longer and is 
more durable. Around 90% of the lighting is LED now, and the entire University will be 
covered shortly.  



 

 

72 | Eastern University, Sri Lanka 

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020 

 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 
THE EASTERN UNIVERSITY, SRI LANKA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 
2020 IN TERMS OF SECTION 12 OF NATIONAL AUDIT ACT, NO. 19 OF 2018 
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MANAGEMENT RESPONSE TO THE AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE EASTERN UNIVERSITY, SRI LANKA FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 IN TERMS OF SECTION 12 OF NATIONAL AUDIT 
ACT, NO. 19 OF 2018 
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